
 

  

LAFCO of Monterey County 
   _ 

 

LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION OF MONTEREY COUNTY 

 
 

 
AGENDA 

 
LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION  

OF MONTEREY COUNTY 
 

Monday, August 26, 2013 
4:00 p.m. 

 
Board of Supervisors Chambers 

Monterey County Government Center 
168 West Alisal Street, First Floor 

Salinas, California 
 

The Local Agency Formation Commission welcomes you to its meetings.  If you want to 
submit  documents  at  this  meeting,  please  bring  15  copies  for  distribution.    The 
meeting will be broadcast  live on Comcast Cable TV Channel 28.   TV rebroadcasts are 
shown every Monday at 4:00 p.m.  Agendas and reports are available on our website at 
least 72 hours before each meeting. 
 
1.  ROLL CALL   
     
2.  CALL TO ORDER   
     
3.  PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  
   

 4.  PUBLIC COMMENTS  
  Anyone may address the Commission briefly concerning items not 

already on the agenda.  Please fill out a Speaker Request Form available 
on the rostrum.   

   
5.  SPECIAL BUSINESS 
   

  a.   Introduction of LAFCO Staff.                                               INFORMATION 
   
  b.   Consider a Resolution to Commemorate the 50th                       ACTION

       Anniversary of the Knox‐Nisbet Act of 1963 and the 
       Creation of the Local Agency Formation Commission of 
       Monterey County. 

                          2013  
          Commissioners 

 
                                      Chair 
                Louis R. Calcagno  
                County Member  

 
                             Vice Chair 
                Steve Snodgrass  
    Special District Member  

 
              Fernando Armenta  
County Member, Alternate 

 
          Sherwood Darington  
                     Public Member 

 
                       Matt Gourley 
  Public Member, Alternate 

 
                             Joe Gunter   
     Alternate, City Member 

          
                       Maria Orozco 
                        City Member 

                                           
                 Warren E. Poitras 
       Special District Member, 
                                 Alternate 

 
                              Ralph Rubio 
                            City Member 

 
                         Simón Salinas 
                    County Member 

                 
                  Graig R. Stephens  
       Special District Member 

 
                                 

                            Staff 
 

           Kate McKenna, AICP 
                 Executive Officer 

 
 

132 W. Gabilan Street, #102 
                 Salinas, CA  93901 

 
                       P. O. Box 1369 
                Salinas, CA  93902 

 
          Voice:  831‐754‐5838 
              Fax:  831‐754‐5831 

 
  www.monterey.lafco.ca.gov 
 



 

2 
 

   

6.  CONSENT CALENDAR  ACTION
   
  a.    Approve the Draft Minutes of June 24, 2013.   
   
  b.    Accept the Warrant Registers for June and July 2013.  

   
  c.    Accept the List of Anticipated Future Agenda Items.  
   
  d.    Receive Status Report Regarding Activities of the California 

       Association of Local Agency Formation Commissions.  
   
7.  PUBLIC HEARINGS  
   
  a.     Consider the “Yanks Air Museum Reorganization” Involving an Update 

        to the Sphere of Influence of the City of Greenfield, the Annexation of 
        Approximately 134.67 Acres to the City, and the Detachment of the 
        Affected Area from the Resource Conservation District of the County  
        of Monterey.  The Action would Allow the Proposed Complex to be  
        Developed within the City of Greenfield.  The Reorganization will  
        Affect All, or Portions of, APNs 111‐012‐017, ‐018, ‐019, and ‐020, 
        which are Located East of Highway 101 and North of an Eastward 
        Extension of Thorne Road. (LAFCO FILE NO. 13‐03) 

ACTION

   
  b.    Consider  the  “Highlands  Point  Sanitary  Association  Annexation” 

          Involving Expansion of the Carmel Area Wastewater District Sphere of  
          Influence  and  Annexation  to  the  District  of  Ten  Single‐Family 
          Residential  Parcels:  APNs  241‐182‐004/005  (to  be merged),  ‐012,  ‐ 
          015,  ‐016,  ‐018,  ‐020,  ‐023,  024,  ‐025,  and  ‐026.   The  Parcels  are 
          Located West of the Highlands Inn and State Route 1, Approximately 
          Five  Miles  South  of  Carmel‐by‐the‐Sea.   The  Parcels  Contain  Nine 
          Existing Residences and One New Residence Under Construction.  The 
          Purpose of the Proposal  is to Allow These Parcels to Connect to the 
         District’s Wastewater System. (LAFCO FILE NO 13‐04) 

ACTION

   
8.  NEW BUSINESS  
   
  a.     Receive Presentation and Consider a Comment Letter for the 

        Notice of Preparation of an Environmental Impact Report for the 2014 
        Metropolitan Transportation Plan/Sustainable Communities Strategy  
        (Association of Monterey Bay Area Governments).   

ACTION

   
   
   

 



 

3 
 

9.  ANNOUNCEMENTS  INFORMATION
   
  a.   Commissioners  
   
  b.   Executive Officer  
   

10.  CLOSED SESSION  
  

  a.   Public Employee Annual Performance Evaluation pursuant to  
      Government Code Section 54957: Position:  LAFCO Executive Officer.  

 

     
11.  ADJOURNMENT TO NEXT MEETING 
     
  Regular LAFCO Meeting – Monday, September 23, 2013 at 4:00 p.m.   
     
Alternative Formats:  If requested, the agenda will be made available in alternative formats to persons with a 
disability, as required by Section 202 of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 USC 12132) and the federal 
rules and regulations adopted in implementation thereof. 

 
 



LAFCO of Monterey County ____________________________________________________________                     

  
 

 
 
KATE McKENNA, AICP 
Executive Officer 
 

DATE:    August 26, 2013 

TO:    Chair and Members of the Formation Commission 

FROM:   Kate McKenna, AICP, Executive Officer 

SUBJECT:  STAFF INTRODUCTIONS 

 
SUMMARY OF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
This report is for information only. 
 

EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S REPORT: 

I am pleased to introduce new staff members, Darren McBain and Mari Rodin, to the Commission.  
 
A native of Monterey County, Darren was educated at Monterey Peninsula College, the University of 
California at Los Angeles, and Cal Poly San Luis Obispo.  He has substantial training and experience as 
a  land use and environmental professional and project manager at city, county and regional  levels, 
most recently at the Fort Ord Reuse Authority. As Senior Analyst, Darren has primary responsibility 
for processing applications.  
 
Mari  lived  for more  than 20 years  in Ukiah, California, where  she built a  successful career  in non‐
profit  consulting  and  public  office  as  an  elected  official  and  Mendocino  LAFCO  City  Member 
Commissioner.   Raised  in San Diego, she was educated at  the University of California at San Diego 
and Case Western Reserve University.   Mari moved  to Monterey County  this month  to begin her 
career as LAFCO Associate Analyst.  Her primary responsibility is to prepare municipal service reviews 
and other studies.   
 
Both appointments were made on an at‐will basis following a competitive recruitment, interview and 
selection process.  The positions are funded pursuant to the annual budget adopted in May 2013. 
 
Sincerely, 

 
Kate McKenna, AICP 
Executive Officer 

LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION
P.O. Box 1369                  132 W. Gabilan Street, Suite 102 
Salinas, CA 93902                  Salinas, CA  93901 
Telephone (831) 754‐5838    Fax (831) 754‐5831 
www.monterey.lafco.ca.gov 

AGENDA
ITEM 
NO. 5.a 



LAFCO of Monterey County ________________________________________________________________                

  
   

 

KATE McKENNA, AICP 
Executive Officer 

 
DATE:    August 26, 2013 
 
TO:    Chair and Members of the Formation Commission 
 
FROM:   Kate McKenna, AICP, Executive Officer 
 
SUBJECT:  GOLDEN ANNIVERSARY  
 
 
SUMMARY OF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
It is recommended that the Commission consider and adopt a Resolution to commemorate the 
50th Anniversary of the Knox‐Nisbet Act of 1963 and the creation of the Local Agency Formation 
Commission of Monterey County.  
 
EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S REPORT: 
 
On  July  17,  1963,  the California  Legislature  approved  the  Knox‐Nisbet Act,  establishing  local 
agency  formation commissions  in each County of the State, and their powers to regulate city 
and special district boundaries. This  law  took effect  in September 1963, and was  followed by 
organizational  steps  at  the  local  level.  The Monterey  County  Board  of  Supervisors  and  City 
Mayors appointed County and City Members to the new Commission on October 21, 1963 and 
December 17, 1963, respectively. County and City Members selected the  first Public Member 
on  January 6, 1964.  The  first  regular meeting of  the  Local Agency  Formation Commission of 
Monterey  County  was  held  on  January  15,  1964.      Special  District  Members  joined  the 
Commission on July 22, 2002. 
 
Chair  Calcagno will  present  a  draft  commemorative  Resolution  at Monday’s meeting.    The 
adopted Resolution will be displayed with other Golden Anniversary  tributes at  the CALAFCO 
Annual Educational Conference on August 28‐30.  
 
Respectfully Submitted, 

 
Kate McKenna, AICP 
Executive Officer 

LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION
P.O. Box 1369                  132 W. Gabilan Street, Suite 102 
Salinas, CA 93902                  Salinas, CA  93901 
Telephone (831) 754‐5838    Fax (831) 754‐5831 

www.monterey.lafco.ca.gov 

AGENDA
ITEM 
NO. 5.b 



 

  

AGENDA
ITEM 
NO. 6.a LAFCO of Monterey County 

   _ 
 

LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION OF MONTEREY COUNTY 

 
 

 

DRAFT MINUTES 
LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION OF MONTEREY 

COUNTY 
Adopted on __________ 

 
Monday, June 24, 2013 

4:00 p.m. 
 

Board of Supervisors Chambers 
Monterey County Government Center 
168 West Alisal Street, First Floor 

Salinas, California 
 

CALL TO ORDER 
 
The Local Agency Formation Commission was called to order by Chair Calcagno 
at 4:02 p.m. in the Monterey County Board of Supervisors Chambers. 
 
ROLL CALL 
 
Members Present 
Commissioner Calcagno (Chair) 
Commissioner Snodgrass (Vice Chair) 
Commissioner Darington 
Commissioner Gourley 
Commissioner Gunter 
Commissioner Orozco 
Commissioner Rubio 
Commissioner Salinas 
Commissioner Stephens  
 
Members Absent 
 
Commissioner Poitras (Excused Absence) 
 
Members not Present (Presence Not Required) 
Commissioner Armenta  
 

                          2013  
          Commissioners 

 
                                      Chair 

                     Louis R. Calcagno  
                 County Member  

 
                             Vice Chair 
                Steve Snodgrass  
     Special District Member  

 
              Fernando Armenta  
County Member, Alternate 

 
          Sherwood Darington  
                     Public Member 

 
                       Matt Gourley 
  Public Member, Alternate 

 
                             Joe Gunter   
     Alternate, City Member 

          
                       Maria Orozco 
                        City Member 

                                           
                 Warren E. Poitras 
       Special District Member, 
                                 Alternate 

 
                              Ralph Rubio 
                            City Member 

 
                         Simón Salinas 
                    County Member 

                 
                  Graig R. Stephens  
       Special District Member 

 
                                 

                            Staff 
 

           Kate McKenna, AICP 
                 Executive Officer 

 
 

132 W. Gabilan Street, #102 
                 Salinas, CA  93901 

 
                       P. O. Box 1369 
                Salinas, CA  93902 

 
          Voice:  831‐754‐5838 
              Fax:  831‐754‐5831 

 
  www.monterey.lafco.ca.gov 
 



2 
 

Staff Present 
Kate McKenna, AICP, Executive Officer 
Leslie J. Girard, LAFCO General Counsel 
Gail Lawrence, LAFCO Clerk to the Commission 
 
  PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 
Commissioner Chair Calcagno asked Commissioner Rubio to lead the Pledge of Allegiance. 

   
4.  PUBLIC COMMENTS 

 
None. 

   
5.   COMMISSIONER ANNOUNCMENTS  
   
  None. 
   
6.  CONSENT CALENDAR   ACTION
   
  a.   Adopt the Draft Minutes of the May 20, 2013 Regular LAFCO Meeting.  
   
  b.   Approve the Register of Warrants for May 2013.  
   
  c.   Accept the List of Anticipated Future Agenda Items.  
   
  d.  Receive a Quarterly Report from the California Association of Local Agency Formation

 Commission (CALAFCO) 
   
  Kate McKenna Executive Officer noted corrections for  Items 6.a and 6.b as follows:  Item 

6.a Minutes, Page 6, No. 10‐Adjournment should be corrected to read “Chair “Calcagno” 
adjourned the meeting.”   
 
Item 6.b Register of Warrants: The title for a deposit amount was reversed with a warrant 
title and was corrected.   

   
  Commissioner Darington requested that Item 6.a – Minutes of May 20, 2013 be voted on 

as a  separate  item as he was not present at  that meeting and would abstain  from  the 
vote.   Chair Calcagno asked for a separate motion for  Item 6.a and a motion for Agenda 
Items b, c, and d.  
 
Commission Actions 
 
Upon motion by Commissioner Stephens, seconded by Commissioner Darington, Consent 
Item 6.a was  approved  and  accepted with  corrections. Ayes: Commissioners: Calcagno, 
Orozco,  Rubio,  Salinas,  Snodgrass,  Stephens;  Noes:  None;  Abstain:  Commissioner 



3 
 

Darington; Absent: None 
 
Upon motion by Commissioner  Salinas,  seconded by Commissioner Darington, Consent 
Items 6.b, c, and d, were unanimously approved and accepted. 
 

   
7.     New Business 
   
  a.   Consider Adoption of a Resolution to: 
   
         (1)  Consider  the  Greenfield  General  Plan  Environmental  Impact  Report,  the 

          Greenfield   South End Environmental  Impact Report and the Greenfield General 
          Plan Environmental Impact Report Addendum.  

   
         (2)   Adopt the Greater Greenfield Area Memorandum of Agreement; and 
   
         (3)  Authorize  the  Chair  of  the  Commission  to  /execute  the  Memorandum  of

          Agreement (LAFCO File No. 06‐10). 
 
The Executive Officer provided a report.  
 
Commissioner and Public Comments 
 
Commissioners  Salinas,  Rubio,  Darington,  and  Chair  Calcagno,  commented  on  the
  historical  importance  of  the  Greenfield Memorandum  of  Understanding  and  thanked 
  everyone  involved for their efforts. Public Comments from Amy White, Land Watch; City
  of Greenfield Mayor John Huerta; and Aaron Johnson, Attorney at Law. 
 
  Commission Action 
 
  Upon  Motion  of  Commissioner  Salinas,  seconded  by  Commissioner  Snodgrass,  the 
  Commission unanimously adopted Agenda Item 7.a  (1), (2) and (3) as presented. 

   
  b.   Consider Appointments to LAFCO Committees. 
   
  There were no public comments. 

 
The Executive Officer provided a report.   
 
 Commissioner Action  
 
 Upon  motion  by  Commissioner  Salinas,  seconded  by  Commissioner  Snodgrass,
 the  Commission  unanimously  adopted  the  LAFCO  Committee  Appointments  as
 presented. 
  



4 
 

  c.  Consider report on Business Items for the 2013 CALAFCO Annual Conference on August 
28‐30, 2013. 

   
        (1)  Authorize Attendance.  
   
        (2)  Designate Voting Delegates) 
   
        (3)  Consider Nominations for CALAFCO Board of Directors. 
   
        (4)   Consider Nominations for CALAFCO Achievement Awards. 
   
  There were no Public Comments. 
   
  The Executive Officer provided a report.  

 
Commission Action 

   
  Upon  motion  by  Commissioner  Snodgrass,  seconded  by  Commissioner  Orozco,  the 

Commission unanimously approved Item 7.c (1), (2), (3), (4) – add (5) as follows: 
7.c(1) Authorized Attendance to the CALAFCO 2013 Annual Conference August 28‐30 by
            LAFCO  Commissioners  Salinas,  Stephens,  Poitras,  LAFCO General  Counsel Girard,
            LAFCO  Staff  Executive  Officer  McKenna,  Senior  Analyst  McBain,  and  Associate 
            Analyst Rodin; and  
7.c(2)  Designated LAFCO Delegates to the CALAFCO Annual Conference as Commissioners 
            Salinas and Stephens; and 
7.c(3)   Determined there are no LAFCO nominations to the CALAFCO Board of Directors; 
             and 
7.c(4) Nominated LAFCO Commissioner Salinas for various CALAFCO Lifetime Achievement
            Awards; and  
7.c(5)  Nominated  the  Greenfield  Memorandum  of  Agreement  for  the  CALAFCO
            2013 Project of the Year Award.  

   
  d.  Consider Authorizing Attendance at a Farmland Preservation Conference Sponsored by 

the Napa County Farm Bureau and American Farmland Trust on August 2, 2013.  
 
The Executive Officer provided a report.  

   
  There were no Public Comments. Commissioner Darington clarified he was not aware that 

LAFCO would be participating  in  this Conference when he accepted  the  invitation  from 
the American Farmland Trust to make a presentation.  

   
  Commission Action 
   
  Upon  motion  by  Commissioner  Rubio,  seconded  by  Commissioner  Salinas,  the 

Commission  Authorized  Attendance  to  the  2013  Farmland  Preservation  Conference  on 



5 
 

August 2, 2013, by Commissioner Darington, LAFCO General Counsel Girard, and LAFCO 
Senior Analyst McBain.   

   
  e.  Consider  Request  from  the  Pajaro/Sunny  Mesa  Community  Services  District  for  a 

Waiver of LAFCO Staff Processing Fees for an Anticipated Future Application to Dissolve 
the  Pajaro  County  Sanitation  District,  Expands  the  Sphere  of  Influence  of  the 
Pajaro/Sunny Mesa Community Services District and Annex the Dissolution Area to the 
Pajaro/Sunny Mesa Community Services District.  

   
  Commissioner Snodgrass stepped out of  the meeting chamber as he noted a conflict of 

interest on item 7.e. Executive Officer McKenna reported on Item 7.e. 
   
  Commission Action 
   
  Upon motion made by Commissioner Stephens, seconded by Commissioner Salinas,  the 

Commission Approved  the Request  for  a Waiver of  LAFCO  Staff Processing  Fees  for  an 
Anticipated  Future Application  to Dissolve  the  Pajaro/Sunny Mesa  Community  Services 
District and Annex  the Dissolution Area  to  the Pajaro/Sunny Mesa Community  Services 
District.  Ayes:  Calcagno,  Darington,  Orozco,  Rubio,  Salinas,  Stephens;  Noes:  None; 
Abstain: Snodgrass; Absent: None.   
 
There were no Public Comments and Commissioner Snodgrass returned to the Dais.  

   
8.   EXECUTIVE OFFICER ANNOUNCEMENTS  

 
Executive Officer McKenna gave a report on LAFCO Staffing. 

   
9.  CLOSED SESSION 
     
  a.  Public  Employee  Annual  Performance  Evaluation  Pursuant  to  Government  Code  

54957.  Performance Evaluation:  LAFCO Executive Officer.  
     
    The Commissioners went into Closed Session at 5:00 p.m. 
     
    The meeting  reconvened at 5:15 p.m.   LAFCO General Counsel stated  there was no 

action to report.  
     
10.  Adjournment to Next Meeting 

 
Chair Calcagno adjourned the meeting at 5:20 p.m.  The next regular LAFCO meeting is 
scheduled for Monday, June 24, 2013 at 4:00 p.m.  

 
 
 
 
 
 



1 
 

LAFCO of Monterey County ________________________________________________________________                

  
   

 
 

 
 
KATE McKENNA, AICP 
Executive Officer 

 
 
 
DATE:    August 26, 2013 
 
TO:    Chair and Members of the Formation Commission 
 
FROM:   Kate McKenna, AICP, Executive Officer 
 
SUBJECT:  LAFCO WARRANT REGISTERS – June and July 2013 
 
 
SUMMARY OF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
It is recommended that the Commission approve the warrant registers. 
 
EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S REPORT: 
 
Attached are lists of warrants written in June and July 2013.   
 
Respectfully Submitted, 

 
Kate McKenna, AICP 
Executive Officer 
 
Attachment: 
  June and July 2013 Warrant Registers 
   

LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION
P.O. Box 1369                  132 W. Gabilan Street, Suite 102 
Salinas, CA 93902                  Salinas, CA  93901 
Telephone (831) 754‐5838    Fax (831) 754‐5831 

www.monterey.lafco.ca.gov 

AGENDA
ITEM 
NO. 6.b 



DATE CK#  NAME  DESCRIPTION 

 CHECK 

AMOUNT 

 DEPOSIT 

AMOUNT 

 ACCOUNT 

BALANCE 

169,928.88$             

06/06/2013 EFT QuickBooks Payroll Service For Payroll Period Ending 5/31/13 Paid 6/7/13 7,934.79 161,994.09

06/07/2013 DEP Virginia Industrial Properties Deposit:  Project Fee (File No. 13-03) 7,950.00 169,944.09

06/07/2013 EFT CalPERS 457 Program CalPers 457 Deferred Compensation 1,854.50 168,089.59

06/07/2013 EFT CalPERS Retirement CalPers Retirement 2,013.42 166,076.17

06/07/2013 EFT EFTPS Federal Payroll Tax Deposit 2,257.56 163,818.61

06/07/2013 EFT EDD State Payroll Tax Deposit 829.13 162,989.48

06/07/2013 4319 Gail M Lawrence For Payroll Period Ending 5/31/13 Paid 6/7/13 0.00 162,989.48

06/07/2013 4320 Kathryn M. McKenna For Payroll Period Ending 5/31/13 Paid 6/7/13 0.00 162,989.48

06/07/2013 4321 Thomas A. McCue For Payroll Period Ending 5/31/13 Paid 6/7/13 0.00 162,989.48

06/07/2013 4322 County of Monterey, Information Technology Computer Support Services for P/E 3/22/13 and 4/19/13 722.00 162,267.48

06/07/2013 4323 Gail Lawrence Mileage Reimbursement; Expense Reimbursement 148.28 162,119.20

06/07/2013 4324 Office of County Counsel - Co of Monterey Legal Services April 2013 763.70 161,355.50

06/07/2013 4325 Rabobank Visa Card Recruitment Advertising; Telephone; Office Supplies 548.32 160,807.18

06/07/2013 4326 St. Clair Investigations Background Checks 400.00 160,407.18

06/07/2013 4327 Tri-County Business Systems Copy Machine Usage 4/11/13-5/10/13 15.54 160,391.64

06/14/2013 DEP Hunt Bros. Construction, Inc. Deposit: Fee For Sewer Permit Lafco File #03-04 6,375.00 166,766.64

06/20/2013 EFT QuickBooks Payroll Service For Payroll Period Ending 6/14/13 Paid 6/21/13 7,582.97 159,183.67

06/21/2013 EFT CalPERS 457 Program CalPers 457 Deferred Compensation Contribution 1,868.96 157,314.71

06/21/2013 EFT CalPERS Retirement CalPers Retirement Contribution 2,013.42 155,301.29

06/21/2013 EFT EDD State Payroll Tax Deposit 752.60 154,548.69

06/21/2013 EFT EFTPS Federal Payroll Tax Deposit 2,051.60 152,497.09

06/21/2013 4328 Gail M Lawrence For P/R Period Ending 6/14/13 Paid 6/21/13 0.00 152,497.09

06/21/2013 4329 Kathryn M. McKenna For P/R Period Ending 6/14/13 Paid 6/21/13 0.00 152,497.09

06/21/2013 4330 Thomas A. McCue For P/R Period Ending 6/14/13 Paid 6/21/13 0.00 152,497.09

06/24/2013 4331 Bruce Lindsey July 2013 Rent 1,926.28 150,570.81

06/24/2013 4332 AT&T Telephone Service from 5/12/13-6/11/13 148.01 150,422.80

06/24/2013 4333 Copymat Outside Printing Customer 165.59 150,257.21

06/24/2013 4334 Earth Design, Inc. Recruitment Advertising Interview-4 Hrs @ $130/Hr 520.00 149,737.21

06/24/2013 4335 Hayashi & Wayland, LLP Accounting Services #72520 3,000.00 146,737.21

06/24/2013 4336 Magellan Behavioral Health EAP Insurance July 2013-Sept 2013 80.40 146,656.81

LAFCO

LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION

OF MONTEREY COUNTY

WARRANT REGISTER

FOR JUNE 2013

Beginning Balance  6/1/13

1 of 2



DATE CK#  NAME  DESCRIPTION 

 CHECK 

AMOUNT 

 DEPOSIT 

AMOUNT 

 ACCOUNT 

BALANCE 

LAFCO

LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION

OF MONTEREY COUNTY

WARRANT REGISTER

FOR JUNE 2013

Beginning Balance  6/1/1306/24/2013 4337 Office of County Counsel - Co of Monterey Legal Services May 2013 545.50 146,111.31

06/24/2013 4338 Pitney Bowes Postage Machine Leasing Charges 3/30-6/30/13 158.77 145,952.54

06/24/2013 4339 SDRMA 2013-2014 Qtr 1 W/C Quarterly Premium 1,850.00 144,102.54

40,151.34$    14,325.00$        

144,102.54$             Ending Balance 6/30/13

2 of 2



1 of 2

DATE CK#  NAME  DESCRIPTION 
 CHECK 

AMOUNT 
 DEPOSIT 
AMOUNT 

 ACCOUNT 
BALANCE 

144,102.54$             

07/03/2013 EFT QuickBooks Payroll Service For Payroll Period Ending 6/28/13 Paid 7/5/13 8,416.68 135,685.86
07/03/2013 DEP Cypress FPD Project Fees: Annexation 3,727.27 139,413.13
07/03/2013 EFT CalPERS Health July 2013 Health Insurance EFT#1000319179 2,605.62 136,807.51
07/05/2013 EFT CalPERS 457 Program CalPERS 457 Deferred Compensation Contribution 1,936.44 134,871.07
07/05/2013 EFT CalPERS Retirement CalPERS Retirement Contribution 1,973.28 132,897.79
07/05/2013 EFT EDD State Payroll Tax Deposit 864.49 132,033.30
07/05/2013 EFT EFTPS Federal Payroll Tax Deposit 2,369.70 129,663.60
07/05/2013 4340 Gail M Lawrence For Payroll Period Ending 6/28/13 Paid 7/5/13 0.00 129,663.60
07/05/2013 4341 Kathryn M. McKenna For Payroll Period Ending 6/28/13 Paid 7/5/13 0.00 129,663.60
07/05/2013 4342 Thomas A. McCue For Payroll Period Ending 6/28/13 Paid 7/5/13 0.00 129,663.60
07/05/2013 4343 AT&T Mobility Telephone Expense 5/22/13-6/21/13 138.16 129,525.44
07/05/2013 4344 CALAFCO CaLafco Membership Dues 2013-2014 3,111.00 126,414.44
07/05/2013 4345 Cash Replenish Petty Cash 87.41 126,327.03
07/05/2013 4346 Copymat Outside Printing Customer#L01004 34.02 126,293.01
07/05/2013 4347 Principal Life July 2013 Benefits:  LTD,ADD,STD,Life 412.87 125,880.14
07/05/2013 4348 Staples Advantage Office Supplies 146.08 125,734.06
07/05/2013 4349 United Group Insurance Trust July 2013 Dental $440.11;Vision$49.22 489.33 125,244.73
07/10/2013 DEP South Monterey County Fire Protection District Project Fees: Annexation 4,200.00 129,444.73
07/18/2013 EFT QuickBooks Payroll Service For Payroll Period Ending 7/12/13 Paid 7/19/13 10,046.15 119,398.58
07/18/2013 EFT Rabobank Visa Card Apple Laptop and Accessories; AT&T Data Plan; Postage 3,000.73 116,397.85
07/19/2013 EFT CalPERS 457 Program For Payroll Period Ending 7/12/13 Paid 7/19/13 2,271.78 114,126.07
07/19/2013 EFT CalPERS Retirement CalPERS Retirement Contribution 2,531.11 111,594.96
07/19/2013 EFT EDD State Payroll Tax Deposit 889.41 110,705.55
07/19/2013 EFT EFTPS Federal Payroll Tax Deposit 2,436.82 108,268.73
07/19/2013 4350 Darren J McBain For Payroll Period Ending 7/12/13 Paid 7/19/13 0.00 108,268.73
07/19/2013 4351 Gail M Lawrence For Payroll Period Ending 7/12/13 Paid 7/19/13 0.00 108,268.73
07/19/2013 4352 Kathryn M. McKenna For Payroll Period Ending 7/12/13 Paid 7/19/13 0.00 108,268.73
07/19/2013 4353 Thomas A. McCue For Payroll Period Ending 7/12/13 Paid 7/19/13 0.00 108,268.73
07/19/2013 4354 Copymat Outside Printing 65.61 108,203.12
07/19/2013 4355 County of Monterey, Information Technology External Hard Drive 81.14 108,121.98
07/19/2013 4356 County of Monterey, RMA-Dept Public Works Express Mail Charges through May 2013 569.91 107,552.07
07/19/2013 4357 CP&DR 1 Year Subscription 238.00 107,314.07
07/19/2013 4358 Hayashi & Wayland, LLP Accounting Services #72520 3,000.00 104,314.07

LAFCO
LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION

OF MONTEREY COUNTY
WARRANT REGISTER

FOR JULY 2013

Beginning Balance  7/1/13



2 of 2

DATE CK#  NAME  DESCRIPTION 
 CHECK 

AMOUNT 
 DEPOSIT 
AMOUNT 

 ACCOUNT 
BALANCE 

LAFCO
LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION

OF MONTEREY COUNTY
WARRANT REGISTER

FOR JULY 2013

   07/19/2013 4359 Office of County Counsel - Co of Monterey Legal Services June 2013 545.50 103,768.57
07/19/2013 4360 SlingShot Connections Temp help: Jimenez, Alma for week ending 6/30/13 533.42 103,235.15
07/19/2013 4361 Staples Advantage Office Supplies 21.34 103,213.81
07/19/2013 4362 United Group Insurance Trust August 2013 Dental $440.11;Vision$49.22 489.33 102,724.48
07/19/2013 4363 Monterey County Resource Mgmt Agency GIS Mapping Services through 1/1/13-6/30/13 1,786.00 100,938.48
07/19/2013 4364 Golden State Planning and Env. Consulting In House Professional Staffing 4,695.70 96,242.78
07/19/2013 4365 Bruce Lindsey August 2013 Rent 1,926.28 94,316.50

57,713.31$      7,927.27$          

94,316.50$               Ending Balance 7/31/13



 

LAFCO of Monterey County ______________________________________________________________             

  
 

 
 
 
KATE McKENNA, AICP 
Executive Officer 

 
DATE:    June 24, 2013 
 

TO:    Chair and Members of the Formation Commission   
 

FROM:   Kate McKenna, AICP, Executive Officer 
 
SUBJECT:  ANTICIPATED FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS  
 
 
SUMMARY OF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
This report is for information only. 

 
EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S REPORT: 
 
Following is a partial list of items that the Commission may consider in coming months.  
 
Anticipated Agenda Items Within Three Months ‐ 
 

1. South  Monterey  County  Fire  Protection  District  –  Sphere  of  Influence 
Amendment  and  Annexation  of  5,000+  acres  in  South  County.  (LAFCO 
Application No. 13‐05 was filed on July 10, 2013.    Incomplete status, pending 
the District‐County approval of a property tax transfer agreement). 

2. Carmel  Area Wastewater  District  –  Annexation  of  four  residential  parcels 
(three developed and one undeveloped)  located on Rotunda Drive  in Carmel 
Valley, within  the District’s existing Sphere of  Influence.  (Application  is being 
prepared; not yet received).     

 
Anticipated Agenda Items Within Six Months ‐ 

 
1.     Pajaro/Sunny  Mesa  Community  Services  District  and  Pajaro  County  

    Sanitation District – Dissolution of the Sanitation District, Sphere of Influence 
    Amendment  for  the  Community  Services  District,  and  Annexation  of  
    Dissolution  Area  to  the  Community  Services  District.    (Application  is  being  
    prepared; not yet received). 

 

LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION
P.O. Box 1369                            132 W. Gabilan Street, Suite 102 
Salinas, CA 93902                             Salinas, CA  93901 
Telephone (831) 754‐5838               Fax (831) 754‐5831 

www.monterey.lafco.ca.gov 

AGENDA
ITEM 
NO. 6.c 



Anticipated Future Agenda Items 
August 26, 2012  

2 
 

 
2. Pajaro/Sunny Mesa Community Services District – Out‐of‐Area Service 

Extension for the former ALCO Water Systems. (Application is being prepared; 
not yet received). 

3. Pajaro/Sunny Mesa Community Services District – Municipal Services Review 
(Initiated by LAFCO). 

4.        Castroville Community Services District and Moss Landing County Sanitation 
           District – Consolidation of Districts (Application is being prepared; not yet  
           received). 
5.        Castroville Community Services District – Municipal Service Review (Initiated 
            by LAFCO). 
6.        Marina Coast Water District – Municipal Service Review (Initiated by LAFCO. 

                     Administrative Draft has been prepared by LAFCO staff and is currently being  
                     reviewed with District. Coordinating steps are underway to resolve  
                     boundary/service issues with Seaside County Sanitation District, prior to  
                     scheduling of public hearings to adopt MSRs for MCWD and SCSD. 
7.                 Seaside County Sanitation District – Municipal Service Review (Initiated by 
                     LAFCO. Administrative draft has been prepared by LAFCO staff and is currently 
                     being reviewed with District.  In August 2013, the District retained planning 
                     and legal services to assist with this process.  Coordinating steps are underway 
                     to resolve boundary/service issues with Marina Coast Water District, prior to 
                     scheduling of public hearings to adopt the MSRs for MCWD and SCSD). 

8.        Carmel Area Wastewater District – Annexation of significant portions of the  
                    District’s existing Sphere of Influence near the Mouth of the Carmel Valley. 

9.        Carmel Area Wastewater District – Municipal Service Review and Sphere of  
            Influence Update (Initiated by LAFCO). 

       10.        Monterey Regional Waste Management District – Municipal Service Review 
                     and Sphere of Influence Update. (Initiated by LAFCO) 
       11.        North County Fire Protection District – Sphere of Influence Amendment and 
                     Annexation of the Monterey Regional Environmental Park (Marina Landfill  
                     and Water Pollution Control Agency facilities), and the Salinas River Diversion 
                     Project (Rubber Dam) Site. (Initiated by LAFCO) 
 
Anticipated Agenda Items Within Twelve Months ‐ 
 

1.  Carmel  Area  Wastewater  District  –  Sphere  of  Influence  Amendment  and 
Annexation of the September Ranch property in Carmel Valley. 

2.  City of Gonzales – Comprehensive Sphere of Influence Amendment. 
3.  Marina  Coast  Water  District  –  Sphere  of  Influence  Amendment  and 

Annexation  of  Portions  of  the  Former  Fort  Ord  to  Provide  Water  and 
Wastewater  Services.  (Coordinating  steps  are  underway  to  resolve 
boundary/service  issues  with  Seaside  County  Sanitation  District,  prior  to 
scheduling of public hearings to consider Sphere Updates and annexations for 
MCWD and SCSD). 



Anticipated Future Agenda Items 
August 26, 2012  

3 
 

 
4.  Seaside County Sanitation District – Sphere of Influence Amendment to 

Include Portions of the Former Fort Ord to Provide Wastewater Services. (In 
August 2013, the District retained planning and legal services to assist in 
completing this process within 18 months.  Coordinating steps are underway to 
resolve boundary/service issues with Marina Coast Water District, prior to 
scheduling of public hearings to consider Sphere updates and annexations for 
SCSD and MCWD). 

5.       City of Seaside – Sphere of Influence Amendment and Annexation of the 
          Proposed Monterey Downs Project, Horse Park and Central Coast Veterans 
          Cemetery. 

          6.        LAFCO’s Human Resources Rules and Regulations – Comprehensive Update  
                    (Initiated by LAFCO). 
 
Anticipated Agenda Items With No Timeline Estimate ‐ 
 

1. City  of Marina  – Annexation  of  Portions  of  the  former  Fort Ord within  the 
City’s Sphere of Influence. 

2. City of Soledad – Sphere of Influence Amendment and Annexation of Miravale 
IIB Subdivision, Los Coches Adobe, and Other Parcels. 

3. County Service Area 15 (Serra Village/Toro Park) – Possible reorganization of 
Government Structure and Services. 

4. Marina  Coast  Water  District  –  Sphere  of  Influence  Amendment  and 
Annexation of the CEMEX (formerly RMC Lonestar) Property to Provide Water 
and Wastewater Services. 

5. Northern Salinas Valley Mosquito Abatement District – Sphere of  Influence 
Amendment  and  Annexation  of  the  Chualar/Gonzales  Area. May  include  a 
Municipal Service Review update, to be initiated by LAFCO. 

6. Municipal Service Review and Sphere of  Influence Update  for Salinas Valley 
Memorial Healthcare System (Initiated by LAFCO).   

7. Soledad  Community  Health  Care  District  –  Comprehensive  Sphere  of 
Influence  Amendment  and  Annexation.    May  include  a  Municipal  Service 
Review update.  

 
 
Respectfully Submitted,  

 
Kate McKenna, AICP 
Executive Officer 
 
 
 



1  

 

LAFCO of Monterey County _________________________________________________________________                

  
 

 
 
 
 
KATE McKENNA, AICP 
Executive Officer 

 
DATE:    August 26, 2013 
 

TO:    Chair and Members of the Formation Commission   
 

FROM:   Kate McKenna, AICP, Executive Officer 
 
SUBJECT:  ACTIVITIES OF THE CALIFORNIA ASSOCIATION OF LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION 

COMMISSIONS  
 
 
SUMMARY OF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
This report is for information only. 

 
EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S REPORT: 
 
Attached is information about activities of the California Association of Local Agency Formation 
Commissions.    These  include:    (1)  a  summary  of  the  CALAFCO  Board  of Directors  July  2013 
meeting; (2) an updated calendar including two upcoming CALAFCO University courses, and (3) 
proposed amendments to Government Code Section 56133. No action is necessary at this time. 
 
Legislative Issue  
 
In  July,  the  CALAFCO  Board  approved  proposed  amendments  to  Government  Code  Section 
56133.  This code section regulates the criteria and process for LAFCOs to consider proposals by 
cities and special districts to extend municipal services outside of their boundaries.  The current 
criteria are restrictive  in nature. The proposed amendments would expand the circumstances 
under which local governments may extend services outside of their boundaries.   
 
Earlier this year, LAFCO of Monterey County and other LAFCOs expressed  informal concern to 
CALAFCO  about  the  proposed  changes.  The  existing  code  language  has worked well  in  this 
County.  However, the CALAFCO Board majority supports the amendments and has referred the 
item to the CALAFCO Legislative Committee for direction on proceeding through the legislative 
process.  This item will be monitored for possible future action. 

LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION
P.O. Box 1369                  132 W. Gabilan Street, Suite 102 
Salinas, CA 93902                  Salinas, CA  93901 
Telephone (831) 754‐5838    Fax (831) 754‐5831 

www.monterey.lafco.ca.gov 

AGENDA
ITEM 

NO. 6.d 



2  

CALAFCO 2013 Annual Conference 
 
This educational conference is taking place on August 28‐30.  As authorized by the Commission, 
the conference will be attended by several staff members and Commissioners Salinas, Poitras 
and Stephens.  
 
Commissioners  Salinas  and  Stephens  are  featured  presenters  at  conference  sessions  on 
legislative advocacy and health care districts.   
 
As authorized, the Executive Officer submitted four CALAFCO award nominations in July.  Three 
nominations  recognize  Commissioner  Salinas’  achievements  as  a  local  legislator,  State 
legislator, CALAFCO Board Member  and  longtime  LAFCO Member.   He  is  nominated  for  the 
CALAFCO Distinguished Leadership Award, the CALAFCO Lifetime Achievement Award, and the 
Mike Gotch Courage and Innovation in Local Government Award.  The fourth nomination is for 
the CALAFCO 2013 Project of the Year Award.   Our nominees are LAFCO of Monterey County, 
the County of Monterey and  the City of Greenfield, and  the project  is the  June 2013 Greater 
Greenfield  Area  Memorandum  of  Agreement.    Award  winners  will  be  announced  at  the 
conference. 
 
Respectfully Submitted,  

 
Kate McKenna, AICP 
Executive Officer 
 
Attachments:   

1. July 2013 CALAFCO Quarterly Report 
2. 2013 CALAFCO Calendar 
3. Proposed Amendments to Government Code Section 56133 



 
 
2013 Annual Conference Update  
Early registration closes July 
29th.  Registrations received 
by CALAFCO after that date 
will need to pay the higher 
rate. Hotel room reservations 
cutoff date is July 25th. Rooms 
have been going quickly so if you have not made your 
reservation yet, you will want to do that ASAP. 
 
The Planning and Host Committees, under the 
leadership of Josh Susman, SR Jones, Kris Berry, 
José Henríquez, and Sam Martinez, have created a 
value-added program and experience for this year’s 
conference, and we look forward to seeing everyone 
there. The mobile workshop will be a breathtaking 
ride in the aerial tram to the top of High Camp, where 
you will tour the Olympic Museum and hear from a 
top-notch panel on the challenges of community 
development in an area of beauty and environmental 
sensitivity.  
 
Other conference guest speakers include: 

 Ken Alex, Director of OPR 
 JoAnne Speers, Executive Director, ILG 
 Gary Winuk, Chief Enforcement Officer, FPPC 
 Dr. Gerald Meral, Deputy Sectretary, CA 

Natural Resources Agency 
 Rich Atwater, Executive Director, So Cal Water 

Committee 
 Tim Quinn, Executive Director, ACWA 
 Judge David Rosenberg, Superior Court Judge 

Yolo County 
 

Details are located on the CALAFCO website along 
with the registration forms. 
 
 

2013 CALAFCO Board 
Elections and Awards 
Nominations Packets Distributed 
The board election nomination period 

closes July 29th. Nomination packets are available in 
the members section of the CALAFCO website. 
Achievement Award nomination period is now closed.  
 
 

 
CALAFCO U Courses Added                          
The Performance Measures and MSR Strategies 
CALAFCO U session was highly successful and due to 
a number of requests to repeat this session in a 
more accessible location, another has been 
scheduled for October 10th in Sacramento. AICP 
Credits available. 
 
Another CALAFCO U session has been scheduled for 
the Clerks on November 14th in Sacramento. This 
session is titled Creating a Clerk’s Manual: The 
Roadmap to Success. Registration for both sessions 
will be made available soon on the CALAFCO website. 

 
CALAFCO Board Actions 
During their regular meeting on July 12, the Board took a 
number of other actions and received updates as follows: 

 The projected year-end financial reports were 
reviewed and the budget is on track to close 
positively this year. All financial reports are located 
on the website. The final FY 2012/2013 budget and 
990 filings will be presented to the Board during 
their August 30th meeting. 

 The Board approved a two-month contract 
extension for the Executive Director through mid- 
November, at which time a full evaluation will be 
conducted and contract renewal discussed. 

 The Board adopted a resolution proclaiming July 17, 
2013 as LAFCo day throughout the state, in honor 
of the 50th anniversary of the signing of the original 
legislation creating LAFCos on that day in 1963. 
This resolution will be displayed, along with a 
number of others that have been adopted 
throughout the state, at the annual conference. 

 GC§56133 – The Board approved the 
recommended legislation amendments from the ad-
hoc subcommittee created as a result of the 
February 8, 2013 Board meeting. The proposed 
legislation will now go to the CALAFCO Legislative 
Committee for direction on proceeding through the 
legislative process. 

 
Legislative Activities 
The legislature is currently in summer recess until early 
August. As of this writing, here is an update on CALAFCO 
bills of importance: 

 AB 453 (Mullin) CALAFCO Sponsored bill. Would 
allow LAFCos to apply directly for grants that 
support the preparation of sustainable community 
strategies and other planning efforts. Currently in 
Senate Appropriations after an amendment 
suggested by the Senate Natural Resources 
Committee. After lengthy discussion, the Board 
chose to offer a friendly amendment to the recent 
amendment. 

 AB678 (Gordon) As amended, requires Health Care 
Districts that do not operate their own hospital 
facilities to create every 5 years, an assessment of 
the community health needs and requires LAFCos to 
include in a MSR the Health Care District's 5-year 
assessment. In Senate Appropriations for 8/12 
hearing. 

 AB 743 (Logue) Amended to eliminate the January 
1, 2014 sunset date on annexation of island areas, 
and changes the effective island creation date to 
01/01/14. Passed Senate with a friendly 
amendment now back in Assembly for concurrence. 

 AB 1427 (ALGC Omnibus) CALAFCO Sponsored bill. 
Awaiting Governor’s signature. 

 SB 56 (Roth) As amended, reinstates revenues 
through ERAF (backfilled by the state general Fund) 
for cities incorporating after 2005 and annexations 
of inhabited territories. In Senate Appropriations. 

NNeewwss  ffrroomm  tthhee  BBooaarrdd  ooff  DDiirreeccttoorrss  

CCAALLAAFFCCOO  QQUUAARRTTEERRLLYY    JJuullyy  22001133 



For current information and other CALAFCO resources please visit www.calafco.org 

 
  

 Updated July 16, 2013 

 
California Association of  

Local Agency Formation 
Commissions 

1215 K Street, Suite 1650 
Sacramento, CA 95814 

916-442-6536 

Sharing Information and Resources 

22001133  EEvveennttss  CCaalleennddaarr  
 
JANUARY 
16 Regional Council of Rural Counties 

Annual Dinner (Sacramento) 
16-18 California Association of Sanitation 

Agencies Conference (Indian Wells) 
25 CALAFCO Legislative Committee 

(Ontario) 
 
FEBRUARY 
7 CALAFCO Board of Directors 

Strategic Retreat (Irvine) 
8 CALAFCO Board of Directors 

Meeting (Irvine) 
 
MARCH 
5 Association of CA Water Agencies 

Legislative Symposium (Sacramento) 
15-17 Local Government Commission 

Ahwahnee Conference (Yosemite) 
22 CALAFCO Legislative Committee   
 (Sacramento) 
 
APRIL 
4-6 Fire District Association Annual 

Meeting (Napa) 
10-12 CALAFCO Staff Workshop (Davis) 
24-26 California Assn. of Sanitation 

Agencies Conference (Newport 
Beach) 

24 League of Cities Legislative Day 
(Sacramento) 

 
MAY 
3 CALAFCO Board of Directors Meeting 

(Northern Region) 
7-10 Association of California Water 

Agencies Conference (Sacramento) 
10 CALAFCO Legislative Committee   
 (San Diego) 
14-15 California Special Districts Assn. 

Legislative Days (Sacramento) 
29-30 California State Assn. of Counties 

Legislative Conference (Sacramento) 
 

JUNE 
6 CALAFCO U – Performance 

Measures and MSR Strategies (San 
Luis Obispo) 

 
JULY 
12 CALAFCO Board of Directors 

Meeting  (Coastal Region) 
26  CALAFCO Legislative Committee   
 (Conference call) 
 

AUGUST 
21-24 California Association of Sanitation 

Agencies Conference (San Diego) 
28 – 30 CALAFCO Annual Conference  
 (North Lake Tahoe) 
30 CALAFCO Board of Directors 

Meeting (North Lake Tahoe) 
 

SEPTEMBER 
18-20 League of California Cities Annual 

Conference (Sacramento) 
25-27 Regional Council of Rural Counties 

Annual Conference (El Dorado 
County) 

16-19 California Special Districts Assn. 
Annual Conference (Monterey) 

 

OCTOBER 
10 CALAFCO U – Performance 

Measures and MSR Strategies 
(Sacramento) 

 
NOVEMBER 
8 CALAFCO Board of Directors 

Meeting (Sacramento) 
14 CALAFCO U – Creating a Clerk’s 

Manual (Sacramento) 
19-22 California State Assn. of Counties 

Annual Meeting (San Jose) 
 
DECEMBER 
3-6 Association of California Water 

Agencies Conference (Los Angeles)

 

 

THE CALIFORNIA ASSOCIATION OF LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSIONS 



Proposed Amendments to G.C. Section 56133 
(Approved by the CALAFCO Board on April 29, 2011 and reapproved by the Legislative 
Committee on December 7, 2012) As approved by the CALAFCO Board of Directors on July 
12, 2013. 
   
(a) A city or district may provide new or extended services by contract or agreement outside its jurisdictional 
boundaries boundary only if it first requests and receives written approval from the commission in the affected 
county.  The commission may delegate approval of requests made pursuant to subdivisions (b) and (c)(1) below to 
the Executive Officer. 
(b) The commission may authorize a city or district to provide new or extended services outside its jurisdictional 
boundaries boundary but within its sphere of influence in anticipation of a later change of organization. 
(c) If consistent with adopted commission policy, tThe commission may authorize a city or district to provide new 
or extended services outside its jurisdictional boundaries boundary and outside its sphere of influence only under 
any one of the following circumstances: 

(1) Tto respond to an existing or impending threat to the public health or safety of the residents of the affected 
territory if both of the following requirements are met: 

   (1) (A) The entity applying for the contract approval has provided the commission with documentation of a 
threat to the health and safety of the public or the affected residents. 

   (2) (B) The commission has notified any alternate service provider, including any water corporation as defined in 
Section 241 of the Public Utilities Code, or sewer system corporation as defined in Section 230.6 of the 
Public Utilities Code, that has filed a map and a statement of its service capabilities with the commission. 

    (2) To serve existing development where the Commission can make the determination set forth in (5) below: 
    (3) To serve territory, developed and/or undeveloped, that has been in the established service area of an existing 

provider, public or private, that has historically provided such service to at least part of the territory and the 
Commission finds that: 

 (A) the provider is no longer capable of providing the service or 
 (B) the provider made the commitment to provide the service to the territory prior to January 1, 1994. 
   (4) To support existing or planned uses within incorporated territory, following a noticed public hearing before 

the Commission, provided that written evidence of support is presented to the Commission from the city in 
which the territory to receive extraterritorial services lies. 

(2) (5) Such service extensions under (2) and (3) above may only be approved by the Commission after To 
support existing or planned uses involving public or private properties, subject to approval at a noticed public 
hearing and the Commission adoption that includes of all of the following determinations: 

(A) The extension of service or service deficiency was identified and evaluated in a municipal service review 
prepared by the commission pursuant to section 56430. 
(B) The effect of the extension of service would not result in adverse impacts on premature conversions of 
open space or agricultural lands or result in adverse growth inducing impacts. 
(C) A later change or of organization involving the subject property territory and the affected agency is not 
feasible or desirable based on this division and the adopted policies of the commission. 

(d) The executive officer, within 30 days of receipt of a request for approval by a city or district of a contract to 
extend services outside its jurisdictional boundary, shall determine whether the request is complete and acceptable 
for filing or whether the request is incomplete. If a request is determined not to be complete, the executive officer 
shall immediately transmit that determination to the requester, specifying those parts of the request that are 
incomplete and the manner in which they can be made complete. When the request is deemed complete, the 
executive officer shall place the request on the agenda of the next commission meeting for which adequate notice 
can be given but not more than 90 days from the date that the request is deemed complete, unless the commission 
has delegated approval of those requests made under this section to the executive officer. The commission or 
executive officer shall approve, disapprove, or approve with conditions the contract for extended services. If the 
contract is the extended services are disapproved or approved with conditions, the applicant may request 
reconsideration, citing the reasons for reconsideration. 
(e) This section does not apply to contracts or agreements solely involving two or more public agencies where the 
commission determines the public service to be provided is an alternative to, or substitute for, public services 
already being provided by an existing public service provider and where the level of service to be provided is 
consistent with the level of service contemplated by the existing service provider.  
(f) This section does not apply to contracts for the transfer of nonpotable or nontreated water.  
(g) This section does not apply to contracts or agreements solely involving the provision of surplus water to 
agricultural lands and facilities, including, but not limited to, incidental residential structures, for projects that serve 
conservation purposes or that directly support agricultural industries. However, prior to extending surplus water 



service to any project that will support or induce development, the city or district shall first request and receive 
written approval from the commission in the affected county.  
(h) This section does not apply to an extended service that a city or district was providing on or before January 1, 
2001.  
(i) This section does not apply to a local publicly owned electric utility, as defined by Section 9604 of the Public 
Utilities Code, providing electric services that do not involve the acquisition, construction, or installation of electric 
distribution facilities by the local publicly owned electric utility, outside of the utility's jurisdictional boundaries. 
(j) The application of this section rests solely within the jurisdiction of the commission in the county in which the 
extension of the service is proposed. 



ITEM 7.a  ‐ Yanks Air Museum Reorganization  

 

Available on CD‐ROM and via the LAFCO of Monterey County web site at 

www.monterey.lafco.ca.gov 

Please note that Agenda Item 7.a is listed below the Agenda and Agenda Packet on the LAFCO 
Website Home Page for 8/26/13 and is listed separately due to its size.   

Paper copies are on file at the LAFCO office. 
 



1 

 
 

 
LAFCO of Monterey County _______________________________________________________________             

 LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION 
                   P.O. Box 1369                         132 Gabilan Street, Suite 102 
                        Salinas, CA 93902                                             Salinas, CA 93901 
                         Telephone (831) 754-5838                            Fax (831) 754-5831         

                                                        www.monterey.lafco.ca.gov 
 

KATE McKENNA, AICP 
Executive Officer 

 
 
DATE:    August 26, 2013 
 
TO:    Chair and Members of the Formation Commission 
 
FROM:   Kate McKenna, AICP, LAFCO Executive Officer 
 
SUBJECT:  CONSIDER  THE  PROPOSED  “HIGHLANDS  POINT  SANITARY  ASSOCIATION” 

ANNEXATION INVOLVING EXPANSION OF THE CARMEL AREA WASTEWATER 
DISTRICT  SPHERE OF  INFLUENCE AND ANNEXATION  TO  THE DISTRICT OF 
TEN  SINGLE‐FAMILY  RESIDENTIAL  PARCELS.  THE  PARCELS  ARE  LOCATED 
WEST OF THE HIGHLANDS INN AND STATE ROUTE 1, APPROXIMATELY FIVE 
MILES  SOUTH  OF  CARMEL‐BY‐THE‐SEA.   THE  PARCELS  CONTAIN  NINE 
EXISTING RESIDENCES AND ONE NEW RESIDENCE UNDER CONSTRUCTION.  
THE  PURPOSE  OF  THE  PROPOSAL  IS  TO  ALLOW  THESE  PARCELS  TO 
CONNECT TO THE DISTRICT’S WASTEWATER SYSTEM.  (LAFCO FILE 13‐04) 

 

SUMMARY OF RECOMMENDATIONS: 

It  is  recommended  that  the Commission conduct a public hearing and adopt  the attached 
resolution (Attachment 2): 

1. Considering  a  Negative  Declaration  adopted  for  the  project  by  the  County  of 
Monterey, pursuant to the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) Guidelines 
(Attachment 3); 

2. Approving an update of  the  Sphere of  Influence of  the Carmel Area Wastewater 
District; 

3. Approving the proposed annexation, and  

4. Waiving Conducting Authority (“protest”) proceedings. 

AGENDA 
ITEM NO.  

7.b 



2 

EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S REPORT: 

Summary of the Proposal 

The proposal consists of an expansion of the Carmel Area Carmel Area Wastewater District’s 
Sphere of  Influence to  include ten parcels  in the Carmel Highlands area, and annexation of 
these  parcels  to  the  District.  The  purpose  of  the  proposal  is  to  allow  the  single‐family 
residences  on  the  properties  to  discontinue  their  existing  use  of  individual  underground 
septic systems and connect to the District’s sanitary sewer system. The subject parcels are 
located on the west side of Highway 1; please see the attached location map (Attachment 1). 
The  total  area  of  these  parcels  is  approximately  9.8  acres.  The  attached  annexation map 
includes the individual parcel numbers and names of the property owners.  

The properties include one new residence that has approved development entitlements and 
is under  construction. The other nine properties are developed with existing  single‐family 
houses currently on septic systems. Annexation to the District would not require owners of 
these nine existing  residences  to connect  to  the District's sanitary  lines. Upon annexation, 
the individual property owners would gain the option to voluntarily connect to the District at 
a future date. The connection fee is currently approximately $3,000 per residential unit. 

There are no unresolved  issues associated with this proposal. The County of Monterey and 
the District  are  in  support of  the proposal.  The project  received  environmental  clearance 
from the County in 2012. The proposed annexation area is immediately adjacent to a parcel 
that  is within the District’s existing boundary, having been annexed  in 2009 (LAFCO file no. 
08‐07).  

Background 

Carmel Highlands  is an area that has experienced severe problems with septic systems and 
contaminated water wells  for many years, because of the  fractured granite bedrock  in the 
area.    This bedrock,  in  the  context of  the density of  the  area’s  septic  systems  and wells, 
creates  problems  because  the  bedrock  material  is  inefficient  at  dispersing  wastewater 
downward and away from wells. In 2007, the Regional Water Quality Control Board alerted 
the County to the immediate potential threat to the public health, safety and welfare posed 
by permitting additional on‐site wastewater disposal systems on individual lots in the Carmel 
Highlands. 

At  the  direction  of  the  Regional Water  Quality  Control  Board,  the  County  of Monterey 
developed  a  plan  for  comprehensively  addressing  septic  system‐based  wastewater 
management practices and requirements in the overall Carmel Highlands area (roughly Point 
Lobos  to  Malpaso  Creek).  The  Carmel  Highlands  Onsite  Wastewater  Management  Plan 
(OWMP) was  adopted  by  the Board  of  Supervisors  in December  2009.  The Central Coast 
Regional Water Quality Control Board approved the OWMP in February 2010.  

To date,  funding and other constraints have  impaired  full  implementation of  the OWMP's 
recommendations. Annexation of these parcels to the District  is, however, a step toward a 
comprehensive long‐term solution to the existing public health and safety threat that exists 
in  the  Carmel  Highlands.  Annexation  to  the  District  is  consistent with  the  intent  of  the 



3 

OWMP, in that it would provide an option for owners of nine existing residential properties 
to  connect  to  sanitary  sewer  service,  thereby  allowing  an  incremental  reduction  in  the 
number  of  septic  systems  disposing  of  sewage  effluent  in  the  currently  overburdened 
Highlands wastewater setting.  

Sphere of Influence and Annexation Analysis 

A Sphere of Influence expansion is needed because the ten parcels proposed for annexation 
are  adjacent  to,  but  not  currently  within,  the  District’s  Sphere  of  Influence.  Prior  to 
approving a Sphere of  Influence expansion,  the Commission must  consider and prepare a 
written  statement  relating  to  present  and  planned  land  uses,  the  need  for,  and  present 
capacity  of,  public  facilities  and  services,  and  the  existence  of  any  relevant  social  or 
economic  communities of  interest. These  considerations, as well  as  the  additional  factors 
that the Commission must consider in the review of an annexation proposal, are addressed 
the attached draft resolution.  

The draft resolution's determinations support approval of the proposed Sphere of Influence 
expansion  and  annexation.  In  addition,  the  District’s  Municipal  Service  Review,  which 
LAFCO approved in June 2006, supports expansion of the District into the Highlands area.  

Carmel Area Wastewater District Facilities 

The District’s treatment facility is adjacent to the Carmel River on the west side of Highway 
1.   Current average dry weather  flow  (ADWF)  is approximately 1.8 MGD which  represents 
60%  of  the  permitted  capacity  under  the District’s National Discharge  Permit  Eliminative 
System  (NPDES) permit  for treatment and disposal of up  to 3.0 MGD average dry weather 
flow. All ten of the properties proposed for annexation would contribute an estimated total 
of less than 3,000 gallons per day of additional wastewater, if they were all to connect to the 
District's sanitary system. At  less  than one quarter of one percent of  the District’s current 
surplus capacity, this added flow will have little impact on the District treatment capacity. 

Public Agency Referrals and Public Noticing  

LAFCO staff  referred  the proposal  to public agencies  for  review and comment on  June 12, 
2013.   The application was  legally noticed for an August 26, 2013 hearing  in the Monterey 
County Herald,  on  August  2,  2013. Notice  of  the  hearing was  also  posted  on  the  LAFCO 
website and at the County Government Center and LAFCO office, and mailed to all known 
interested  agencies,  organizations  and  individuals.  LAFCO  has  fully  complied  with  all 
requirements  and  procedures  for  public  agency  referrals  and  public  noticing.  In  addition, 
though no longer required to do so by State law, LAFCO mailed hearing notices to property 
owners and voters within a 300‐foot  radius of  the proposed annexation, as well as  to  the 
owners of the 10 subject properties. 

District/County Tax Transfer 

The  proposed  annexation  will  have  no  effect  on  existing  property  tax  allocations.  The 
Monterey County Board of Supervisors approved a “Zero Property Tax Transfer” on July 30, 
2013 (Resolution No: 13‐278).  A copy of this resolution is on file in the LAFCO office. 



4 

 Waiver of Conducting Authority (“Protest”) Proceedings 

Based  on  changes  to  Government  Code  section  56663  effective  January  1,  2013,  the 
Commission may waive  Conducting  Authority  proceedings  (also  referred  to  as  a  protest 
hearing) unless written opposition  is received prior to the close of the hearing. LAFCO staff 
has provided written notice of  intent to waive the protest hearing process to owners of all 
ten of the subject properties. The draft resolution  includes  language formalizing the waiver 
of a protest hearing. If written opposition were to be received from a property owner, then 
State  law would require a protest hearing for this proposal.   The protest hearing cannot be 
held  prior  to  the  expiration  of  the  30‐day  reconsideration  period  referenced  above.  If  a 
protest  hearing  were  to  be  needed,  it  would  be  scheduled  for  the  October  28,  2013 
Commission meeting.  

Environmental Determination 

The  County  of  Monterey  is  the  Lead  Agency  for  this  proposal  under  the  California 
Environmental Quality  Act  (CEQA).  LAFCO  is  a  Responsible  Agency.  In  2012  the  County  of 
Monterey analyzed the extension of sewer service to the ten subject properties  (County  file 
no. PLN120558), and adopted a Negative Declaration, indicating that the project will have no 
significant  adverse  environmental  impacts.  LAFCO  staff  has  reviewed  this  determination. 
Within the draft resolution for this annexation, staff recommends that the Commission concur 
with this determination, based on its independent judgment of the application materials and 
the facts presented.   

Agency Comments 

The Monterey County Resource Management Agency submitted a memorandum on June 28, 
2013 indicating that the agency had no comments or concerns with respect to the proposed 
annexation. The County has  taken a proactive  role  in  supporting annexation of  this entire 
grouping of properties in a single action rather than “piecemeal” annexation of lots.  

The Carmel Area Wastewater District's Board of Directors approved a resolution  in support 
of  the  proposed  annexation  in  2012,  including  deferral  of  connection  fees  for  the  nine 
already‐developed  lots.  The  resolution  and  supporting materials  are  on  file  in  the  LAFCO 
office. 

Recommended Conditions of Approval 

The recommended conditions of approval are contained  in Sections 20 and 26 of the draft 
resolution. The proposal is approved subject to: 

a. Review  and  pre‐clearance  of  the  annexation  by  the  United  States  Department  of 
Justice pursuant to Section 5 of the Voting Rights Act; 

b. Completion  of  the  reconsideration  process  described  in  Government  Code  section 
56895; 

c. Preparation  of  a map  and  geographic  description  acceptable  to  the  State  Board  of 
Equalization; 



5 

d. Payment of all  fees  incurred  in the processing of the application consistent with the 
LAFCO fee schedule, including the fee required by the State Board of Equalization; 

e. The  applicant  association’s  indemnification  of  LAFCO  for  any  court  costs  and 
attorneys’ fees that may be required by a court to pay as a result of such action, and 

f. Payment of Carmel Area Wastewater District connection fees. Payment for the Cappo 
parcel  shall  be  due  upon  completion  of  the  currently  proposed  annexation. 
Connection  fees  for  the nine other  subject parcels  is deferred  for present purposes 
and  shall  be  paid  to  the  District  prior  to  connecting  to  the  District’s  wastewater 
system.   

Conclusion  

The proposed Sphere expansion and annexation are a substantial step toward implementing 
the  longer‐term public health goal of reducing the number of septic systems  in the Carmel 
Highlands Area. The proposal is consistent with the factors to be considered in the review of 
a proposal for a Sphere of Influence update and annexation. These factors, and an analysis of 
the proposal’s  consistency with  them,  are  included  in  the  attached draft  resolution.  Staff 
recommends  adoption  of  the  attached  resolution  to  approve  the  proposed  Sphere  of 
Influence amendment and annexation to the Carmel Area Wastewater District. 

Reconsideration  

Pursuant  to  Government  Code  56895,  after  the  Commission  has  adopted  a  resolution 
making determinations, any person or affected agency may  file a written request with the 
LAFCO  Executive Officer  requesting  amendments  to  or  reconsideration  of  the  resolution.  
The person or agency  shall  file  the written  request within 30 days of  the adoption of  the 
resolution by the LAFCO Commission making determinations.     

Next Steps 

Approval of  this  action will  trigger  the  required  “Reconsideration” period  (please  see  the 
subsection above). As with all annexations  in Monterey County, staff will also  forward  the 
Commission’s approval to the U.S. Department of Justice (DOJ) for preclearance during this 
time. The DOJ has up to 60 days within which to respond. Following satisfactory completion 
of the preceding items, staff will file a Certificate of Completion with the County Recorder’s 
Office (thereby effectuating the annexation), and will notify the State Board of Equalization.   

Alternative Actions 

In lieu of the recommended action, the Commission may act to deny the Sphere of Influence 
amendment  and  reorganization  application  or  to  amend  the  boundaries  of  the  proposed 
Sphere expansion and/or reorganization.  The Commission may also act to modify, delete, or 
add any appropriate conditions of approval for the proposal. Substantial changes to the draft 
resolution would require a continuation of the agenda item, with direction to the Executive 
Officer to prepare a new draft Resolution based on the Commission’s findings.   

 



6 

Respectfully Submitted, 

 
Kate McKenna, AICP 
Executive Officer 
 
 
Attachments:    

1. Location Map 
2. Draft Resolution, including Annexation Map and Geographic Description     
3. Adopted Negative Declaration (County of Monterey File No. PLN120558) 

 
 
cc:   Owners of subject properties 
        Robert Carver, AIA, Studio Carver 
        Drew Lander, CAWD 
        Bob Schubert, County of Monterey 
         



Attachment 1: 

Location Map 
   
 



 

Proposed Sphere of Influence 

Expansion and Annexation 

Attachment 1 to Item 7.b: Location Map 



Attachment 2: 

Draft Resolution 
 



RESOLUTION NO. 13_XX 
 

RESOLUTION  OF  THE  LOCAL  AGENCY  FORMATION  COMMISSION  OF  MONTEREY 
COUNTY  MAKING  DETERMINATIONS  APPROVING  THE  PROPOSED  “HIGHLANDS 
POINT  SANITARY  ASSOCIATION”  ANNEXATION  INVOLVING  EXPANSION  OF  THE 
CARMEL AREA WASTEWATER DISTRICT SPHERE OF INFLUENCE AND ANNEXATION TO 
THE DISTRICT OF TEN SINGLE‐FAMILY RESIDENTIAL PARCELS: APNs 241‐182‐004/005 
(TO BE MERGED), 241‐182‐012, ‐015, ‐016, ‐018, ‐020, ‐023, 024, ‐025, and ‐026. THE 
PARCELS  ARE  LOCATED  WEST  OF  THE  HIGHLANDS  INN  AND  STATE  ROUTE  1, 
APPROXIMATELY  FIVE  MILES  SOUTH  OF  CARMEL‐BY‐THE‐SEA.   THE  PARCELS 
CONTAIN  NINE  EXISTING  RESIDENCES  AND  ONE  NEW  RESIDENCE  UNDER 
CONSTRUCTION.  THE PURPOSE OF THE PROPOSAL IS TO ALLOW THESE PARCELS TO 
CONNECT TO THE DISTRICT’S WASTEWATER SYSTEM.  (LAFCO FILE 13‐04) 

 
RESOLVED, by the Local Agency Formation Commission of Monterey County, State of 

California, that 
 
  WHEREAS, Carmel Highlands  is an area  that has experienced severe problems with 
septic  systems  and  contaminated water  wells  for many  years,  because  of  the  fractured 
granite bedrock in the area; and 
 
  WHEREAS,  In 2007 the Regional Water Quality Control Board alerted the County of 
Monterey to the  immediate potential threat to the public health, safety and welfare posed 
by permitting additional on‐site wastewater disposal systems on individual lots in the Carmel 
Highlands; and 
 
  WHEREAS,  an  application  for  the  proposed  “Highlands  Point  Sanitary  Association” 
annexation  involving  a  review  and update of  the  Sphere of  Influence of  the Carmel Area 
Wastewater  District  and  annexation  to  the  District  of  ten  residential  properties  on 
approximately 9.8  acres, was  filed  and  accepted  for  filing by  the Executive Officer of  this 
Local Agency Formation Commission, pursuant to Title 6, Division 1, commencing with Section 
56000, et seq. of the Government Code; and 
 
  WHEREAS, the subject properties include one proposed residence that has approved 
development  entitlements  and  is  under  construction.  The  other  nine  properties  are 
developed with existing single‐family houses currently on septic systems; and  
 
  WHEREAS, annexation to the District would not require owners of these nine existing 
properties  to  connect  to  the  District's  sanitary  lines.  Upon  annexation,  the  individual 
property owners would gain the option to voluntarily connect to the District at a future date; 
and 
 

WHEREAS, a Certificate of Filing was issued for the application on August 7, 2013; and  
 



WHEREAS, the Carmel Area Wastewater District has passed a resolution  in support of 
annexing the ten properties in question; and 

 
  WHEREAS, the affected territory is inhabited; and 
 
  WHEREAS,  the  Executive Officer,  pursuant  to Government  Code  Section  56658,  set 
August 26, 2013 as the hearing date on this proposal and gave notice of hearing; and 
   
  WHEREAS, the public hearing by this Commission was held upon the date and at the 
time and place specified  in the notice of hearing and  in any order or orders continuing such 
hearing; and 
 
  WHEREAS,  the  Executive Officer,  pursuant  to Government Code  Section  56665,  has 
reviewed this proposal and prepared a report,  including recommendations thereon, and has 
furnished a copy of this report to each person entitled to a copy; and 
 
  WHEREAS,  the  purpose  for  this  Sphere  of  Influence  update  and  annexation  is  to 
provide  sewer  service  to one proposed  residence  and nine existing  residential parcels with 
existing septic systems consistent with the County of Monterey General Plan and zoning; and 
   
  WHEREAS,  this  Commission,  on  August  26,  2013  heard  from  interested  parties, 
considered  the proposal and  the  report of  the Executive Officer and considered  the  factors 
determined by the Commission to be relevant to this proposal,  including, but not  limited to, 
factors specified in Government Code Sections 56425(e) and 56668; and 
 
  WHEREAS, the County of Monterey adopted a Negative Declaration for extension of 
sanitary  sewer  service  to  the  ten  parcels  in  question  pursuant  to  the  California 
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) Guidelines; and 
 
  WHEREAS, based on  its  independent  judgment of  the  application materials  and  the 
facts presented,  the  Local Agency  Formation Commission, as a  responsible agency,  concurs 
that the proposal will have significant adverse impacts on the environment; and 
 
  WHEREAS, pursuant to Government Code Section 56663, the Commission may waive 
Conducting Authority proceedings unless written opposition  is received prior  to  the close of 
the hearing, and LAFCO staff has provided the required written notice of  intent to waive the 
protest hearing process to owners of all ten of the subject properties under this section; 
 
  NOW, THEREFORE, the Local Agency Formation Commission of Monterey County does 
HEREBY RESOLVE, DETERMINE, AND ORDER as follows: 
 
  Section 1.  LAFCO staff has provided the required written notice of intent to waive 
the  protest  hearing  process  to  owners  of  all  ten  of  the  subject  properties  pursuant  to 
Government Code Section 56663. No written protests have been received. 
 



Section 2.  In determining the Sphere of Influence of the Carmel Area Wastewater 
District  the  Commission,  in  accord  with  Section  56425(e)  of  the  Government  Code,  has 
considered and prepared a written statement of its determinations with respect to each of the 
following:  

 The present and planned land uses in the area, including agricultural and open‐space 
lands.    

The proposed expansion of  the Sphere of  Influence  includes  ten  residential parcels 
on approximately 9.8 acres. The parcels include nine existing single‐family residences 
and  one  new  single‐family  residence  under  construction.  There  are  no  additional 
planned uses on these properties. The proposed addition to the District’s Sphere of 
Influence does not contain agricultural or open space uses, nor are such uses planned 
for in the County General Plan. 
 

 The present and probable need for public facilities and services in the area, and  

 The  present  capacity  of  public  facilities  and  adequacy  of  public  services  that  the 
agency provides or is authorized to provide. 

At  the  direction  of  the  Regional  Water  Quality  Control  Board,  the  County  of 
Monterey  has developed a plan for comprehensively addressing septic system‐based 
wastewater management practices and requirements in the overall Carmel Highlands 
area  (roughly  Point  Lobos  to  Malpaso  Creek).  The  Carmel  Highlands  Onsite 
Wastewater Management Plan (OWMP) was adopted by the Board of Supervisors in 
December 2009. The Central Coast Regional Water Quality Control Board approved 
the OWMP in February  2010. To date, funding and other constraints have impaired 
full  implementation of the OWMP's recommendations. However,  it  is  likely that the 
OWMP will  precipitate  Carmel  Highlands  area  septic  systems  being  incrementally 
eliminated over time as property owners select to, or are required to, connect to a 
centralized wastewater treatment system.   

Annexation to the District, as currently proposed, is consistent with the intent of the 
OWMP,  in  that  it would  provide  an  option  for  owners  of  nine  existing  residential 
properties  to  connect  to  sanitary  sewer  service,  thereby  allowing  an  incremental 
reduction  in  the  number  of  septic  systems  disposing  of  sewage  effluent  in  the 
currently overburdened Highlands wastewater setting.  

The Carmel Area Wastewater District  is currently at approximately 60 percent of  its 
treatment capacity, and the proposed expansion would use less than one quarter of 
one percent of the surplus capacity. Expansion of District’s Sphere of Influence would 
be  environmentally  superior  to  continuing with  the  existing  septic  systems.    The 
District is the only public or private utility able to provide for wastewater disposal in 
the area. 

The  operations  and  boundaries  of  the  Carmel  Area  Wastewater  District  were 
reviewed within  the Carmel Valley Municipal Service Review which was approved 
by LAFCO in 2006.   This analysis did not disclose any deficiencies  in the services or 



structure of  the District.   However,  in  the “Summary and Determinations” section 
of the report it is recommended that the Sphere of Influence of the District “should 
be updated  to comprehensively address existing needs  in  the area.    In particular, 
the coastal areas should be evaluated as smaller individual systems and septic tanks 
are getting older.  The benefits of providing sewer service that complies with State 
regulations needs to be evaluated against the cost of operating smaller systems.” 
 

 The  existence  of any  social  or  economic  communities  of  interest  in  the  area  if  the 
commission determines that they are relevant to the agency. 

There are no specific social or economic communities of  interest  in this geographic 
area  that  are  relevant  to  the  proposal  to  expand  the  Sphere  of  Influence  of  the 
Carmel Area Wastewater District. 
 

  Section 3.    The  Commission  has  hereby  reviewed  and  updated  the  Sphere  of 
Influence of the Carmel Area Wastewater District as required by Government Code 56425(g). 
The current proposal  for a minor Sphere of  Influence amendment  is compatible with the 
existing  Sphere of  Influence and  this  Sphere  is  consistent with  the  current needs of  the 
community served.   
 

Section 4.  Population and population density; land area and land use; per capita 
assessed valuation; topography, natural boundaries, and drainage basins; proximity to other 
populated  areas;  the  likelihood  of  significant  growth  in  the  area,  and  in  adjacent 
incorporated and unincorporated areas, during the next 10 years (Gov. Code § 56668(a).)    

There are approximately 20 residents associated with the ten parcels.  The properties 
are used for single‐family dwellings except for the Cappo parcel with a new residence that is 
under construction.  Numerous small drainage basins exist within the annexation area, as it 
is located on the coastline. The nearest population centers are in the City of Carmel‐by‐the‐
Sea  and  other Monterey  Peninsula  cities  to  the  north.    Growth  potential  in  the  Carmel 
Highlands area is very limited.   

Section 5.  The need for organized community services; the present cost and adequacy 
of governmental services and controls  in the area; probable future needs for those services 
and controls; probable effect of the proposed … annexation … and of alternative courses of 
action on  the  cost and adequacy of  services and  controls  in  the area and adjacent areas.  
(Gov. Code § 56668(b).)    

The  density  of  development  in  the  area,  coupled with  the  area's  hydrogeological 
characteristics, makes the continued use of on‐site septic systems problematic. The Carmel 
Area  Wastewater  District  is  the  only  organization  in  the  area  capable  of  providing 
wastewater service. The proposed annexation area  is contiguous with  the nearest existing 
District boundary.  The District's existing  treatment  facility  serves  the  greater Carmel  area 
with more than 6,600 service connections.       



Section 6.  The  effect  of  the  proposed  action  and  of  alternative  actions,  on 
adjacent  areas,  on mutual  social  and  economic  interests,  and  on  the  local  governmental 
structure of the county.  (Gov. Code § 56668(c).) 

The proposed construction of lateral connections to the existing District wastewater 
trunk  line  in  Highway  1  in  the  Carmel  Highlands  area  will  have  no  effect  on  adjacent 
properties, or on mutual social and economic  interests, or on  local governmental structure 
of  the County. Annexation  to  the District would not  require owners of  the affected area's 
nine  existing  residences  to  connect  to  the  District's  sanitary  lines. Upon  annexation,  the 
individual property owners would gain the option to voluntarily connect to the District at a 
future  date. However,  the  sewer  line would  be  sized  to  accommodate  the  connection  of 
these  residences  in  the  future.  The  connection  fee  is  currently  approximately  $3,000  per 
residential unit.  
   

Section 7.  The  conformity of both  the proposal and  its anticipated  effects with 
both  the  adopted  commission  policies  on  providing  planned,  orderly,  efficient  patterns  of 
urban development, and the policies and priorities set forth  in Section 56377.   (Gov. Code § 
56668(d).) 

The annexation of these ten parcels to the Carmel Area Wastewater District will help 
address  significant environmental  impacts associated with  septic  system  contamination of 
local  wells  and  the marine  environments.    Annexation  to  the  District  is  consistent  with 
LAFCO  policies.  Section  56377  pertains  to  development  being  directed  away  from  open‐
space  and  agricultural  land,  unless  to  do  so  would  not  promote  the  planned,  orderly, 
efficient development of an area.  The land proposed for annexation is neither designated by 
the County for open space or agricultural use, nor is it in any form of agricultural production. 

 
Section 8.  The effect of  the proposal on maintaining  the physical and economic 

integrity of agricultural lands, as defined in Section 56106.  (Gov. Code § 56668(e).) 
The proposal will have no impact on maintaining the physical and economic integrity 

of agricultural lands. The parcels in question are not designated in the County General Plan 
for an agricultural use.   

Section 9.  The definiteness and  certainty of  the boundaries of  the  territory,  the 
nonconformance of proposed boundaries with lines of assessment or ownership, the creation 
of  islands or  corridors of unincorporated  territory, and other  similar matters affecting  the 
proposed boundaries.  (Gov. Code § 56668(f).) 

The project boundaries are definite and certain and consistent with assessment lines 
and ownership.   
 

Section 10.  Consistency with city or county general and specific plans.  (Gov. Code 
§ 56668(g).) 

The present uses are consistent with the general plan and zoning ordinance. 
 

Section 11.  The sphere of  influence of any  local agency, which may be applicable 
to the proposal being reviewed.  (Gov. Code §§ 56375.5, 56668(h).) 



The proposed annexation area  is  immediately adjacent to a parcel that  is within the 
District’s existing boundary, having been annexed in 2009 (LAFCO file no. 08‐07).  The parcels 
are  neither  within,  nor  in  close  proximity,  to  the  sphere  of  influence  of  any  other 
governmental body which could support the development with wastewater services. 
 

Section 12.  The comments of any affected local agency.  (Gov. Code § 56668(i).) 
No  local agency contacted through the LAFCO referral process submitted comments 

critical of the proposal, nor did any agency suggest changes in the proposal or conditions to 
its approval.   

 
Section 13.  The  ability  of  the  newly  formed  or  receiving  entity  to  provide  the 

services which  are  the  subject  of  the  application  to  the  area,  including  the  sufficiency  of 
revenues for those services following the proposed boundary change. (Gov. Code § 56668(j).) 
  The Carmel Valley Municipal Services Review (MSR) has not  identified any shortfalls 
in the District’s services or finance.   The peak flow of the District  is currently about 60% of 
the permitted capacity.   The annexation would result  in a maximum of approximately 3000 
gallons  per  day  of  additional  wastewater,  if  all  ten  properties  were  to  connect  to  the 
District’s  sanitary  lines.  This  increase would  constitute  a  nominal  amount  (approximately 
0.25% of  the District’s estimated  surplus  capacity.   The MSR  states  that  rates  to property 
owners  “are  designed  to  recover  projected  operation,  maintenance,  and  replacement 
expenses…based on their proportional contribution to the total wastewater  load.”   At such 
time as property owners connect to the District’s infrastructure, they will be required to pay 
applicable connection  fees, sewer user  fees, construction costs, and a contribution toward 
annual payments on a District bond issue.  
 

Section 14.  Timely availability of water  supplies adequate  for projected needs as 
specified in Section 65352.5.  (Gov. Code § 56668(k).) 

Water supply is a critical issue in the greater Monterey Peninsula area.  Development 
of  parcels within  the  boundaries  of  the Monterey  Peninsula Water Management District 
depends on the availability of water through an allocation system based on pro‐rationing of 
water within  the political  jurisdiction.   However,  in  this case  there are existing or entitled 
uses on all of the ten affected parcels.   No additional water use would be triggered by the 
proposed annexation.   

 
Section 15.  The  extent  to which  the  proposal will  affect  a  city  or  cities  and  the 

county  in achieving their respective fair shares of the regional housing needs as determined 
by  the appropriate  council  of governments  consistent with Article  10.6  (commencing with 
Section 65580) of Chapter 3 of Division 1 of Title 7.  (Gov. Code § 56668(l).) 

The proposal involved unincorporated land within the County’s land use jurisdiction.  
The annexation of these ten existing parcels to a wastewater district will in no way affect the 
County’s ability to achieve, or not achieve, its respective fair share of regional housing needs.      
 

Section 16.  Any  information or comments  from the  landowner or owners, voters, 
or residents of the affected territory.   (Gov. Code § 56668(m).) 



The applicant has gathered written consent from owners of three of the ten affected 
properties, which has been provided to LAFCO.  No other comments from voters or residents 
of  the  affected  territory  have  been  submitted  to  LAFCO. No  owners  or  voters within  the 
affected territory are known to be opposed to the proposed annexation. 

 
Section 17.  Any information relating to existing land use designations. (Gov. Code 

§ 56668(n).) 
The properties are designated for low‐density single‐family residential use.   
 
Section 18.  The extent  to which  the proposal will promote environmental  justice.  

As used in this subdivision, "environmental justice" means the fair treatment of people of all 
races, cultures, and incomes with respect to the location of public facilities and the provision 
of public services.   (Gov. Code § 56668(o).) 

Because of the nature of the proposed action, there are no economic justice issues.     
 

Section 19.  The exchange of property tax.  (Revenue and Taxation Code § 99.01.) 
A  “Zero  Property  Tax  Transfer” was  approved  by  the Monterey  County  Board  of 

Supervisors on July 30, 2013 (Resolution No: 13‐278).   A copy of this resolution  is on file  in 
the LAFCO office. 

 
  Section 20.   Said proposal is approved subject to the following terms and conditions:   
a. Review and pre‐clearance of the annexation by the United States Department of Justice 

pursuant to Section 5 of the Voting Rights Act; 
b. Completion  of  the  reconsideration  process  described  in  Government  Code  section 

56895; 
c. Preparation  of  a  map  and  geographic  description  acceptable  to  the  State  Board  of 

Equalization; 
d. Payment  of  all  fees  incurred  in  the  processing  of  the  application  consistent with  the 

LAFCO fee schedule, including the fee required by the State Board of Equalization; 
e. The applicant association’s  indemnification of LAFCO for any court costs and attorneys’ 

fees that may be required by a court to pay as a result of such action, and 
f. Payment of Carmel Area Wastewater District  connection  fees. Payment  for  the Cappo 

parcel shall be due upon completion of the currently proposed annexation. Connection 
fees for the nine other subject parcels is deferred for present purposes and shall be paid 
to the District prior to connecting to the District’s wastewater system.   

 
  Section 21.   The Certificate of Completion  shall not be  issued until  all  terms  and 
conditions are met. 
 

Section 22.   If  a  Certificate  of  Completion  for  a  change  of  organization  or 
reorganization has not been filed within one year after the Commission approves a proposal 
for  that  proceeding,  the  proceeding  shall  be  deemed  abandoned  unless  prior  to  the 
expiration of that year the Commission authorizes an extension of time for that completion. 
The extension may be for any period deemed reasonable to the Commission for completion 
of  necessary  prerequisite  actions  by  any  party.  If  a  proceeding  has  not  been  completed 



because of the order or decree of a court of competent jurisdiction temporarily enjoining or 
restraining the proceedings, this shall not be deemed a failure of completion and the one‐
year period shall be tolled for the time that order or decree is in effect.  [Government Code 
Section 57001] 
   
  Section 23.    The  boundaries  of  the  territory  proposed  to  be  annexed  are  hereby 
approved as described in Exhibit "A" attached hereto and made a part hereof.  Said territory is 
assigned  the  following  distinctive  short  form  designation:  “HIGHLANDS  POINT  SANITARY 
ASSOCIATION.” 
 
  Section 24.  The  Local  Agency  Formation  Commission  is  authorizing  waiver  of 
Conducting Authority proceedings. 
     
  Section 25.  The Executive Officer is hereby authorized and directed to mail certified 
copies of this resolution  in the manner and as provided  in Section 56882 of the Government 
Code. 
 
  Section 26.     The applicant association agrees, as a condition of  the approval of  this 
application, to defend at  its sole expense any action brought against LAFCO, the Commission 
and its staff, because of the approval of this application.  The applicant will reimburse LAFCO 
for any court costs and attorneys’ fees which may be required by a court to pay as a result of 
such action.   LAFCO may, at  its sole discretion, participate  in the defense of any such action; 
but such participation shall not relieve applicant of his obligations under this condition.   The 
obligation on the part of the applicant to  indemnify LAFCO  is effective upon the adoption of 
this resolution and does not require any further action.   
 

 
UPON MOTION OF Commissioner _______, seconded by Commissioner ______, the 

foregoing resolution is adopted this 26th day of August, 2013 by the following vote: 
 
 
AYES:     
NOES:     
ABSENT:   
ABSTAIN:   
 
 
        ___________________________________ 

Louis R. Calcagno, Chair 
Local Agency Formation Commission of Monterey County 
 

 
 

ATTEST:  I certify that the within instrument is a 
true and complete copy of the original 



resolution of said Commission on file 
within this office.    

 
  Witness my hand this 26th day of August, 

2013 
 
 
  By: 

___________________________________ 
       Kate McKenna, AICP, Executive Officer 



MT DEVON

HIG
HLA

NDS

PINE

HIGHWAY ONE

HIGHLANDS DRIVE 
TO HIGHLANDS INN

CYPRESS

OAK

BOYD

Already Annexed-Existing District 
Boundary

APRIL 12,2013

JOHANA RODRIGUEZ

HIGHLANDS POINT SEWER ASSOCIATION 1 ANNEXATION TO THE CARMEL AREA WASTEWATER DISTRICT 

VICINITY MAP AND DISTRICT BOUNDARY MAP &  PROPOSED ANNEXATION TO CARMEL AREA WASTWATER DISTRICT    

NTS

1107

Proposed Area 

Proposed Area

Scale 1”=1000’   @ 11X17
0 1000

100

060176

060157

T.16S.,R.01 W.







Attachment 3: 

Environmental Clearance 

(2012 Negative Declaration by County of Monterey) 
 















1 
 

LAFCO of Monterey County ____________________________________________________________                     

  
 

 
 
 
KATE McKENNA, AICP 
Executive Officer 

 
DATE:    August 26, 2013 
 

TO:    Chair and Members of the Formation Commission   
 

FROM:   Kate McKenna, AICP, Executive Officer 
 
SUBJECT:  2014 METROPOLITAN TRANSPORTATION PLAN/SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITIES 

STRATEGY (ASSOCIATION OF MONTEREY BAY AREA GOVERNMENTS) 
 
 
SUMMARY OF RECOMMENDATIONS: 
 
It is recommended that the Commission: 
 

1. Receive a brief presentation from an AMBAG representative on the status of a regional 
transportation planning process and related environmental review process; 
 

2. Request comments from the public and Commission, and 
 

3. Authorize  a  Comment  Letter  (Attachment  1)  for  the  Notice  of  Preparation  of  an 
Environmental  Impact  Report  for  the  forthcoming  2014 Metropolitan  Transportation 
Plan/Sustainable Community Strategy. 

 
EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S REPORT: 
 
Ms.  Heather  Adamson,  AMBAG  Principal  Planner,  will  brief  the  Commission  on  regional 
transportation  planning  and  environmental  review  activities.  The  2014  Metropolitan 
Transportation  Plan  process  includes  a  sustainable  community  land  use  component,  and  a 
statutory requirement that AMBAG consider the Spheres of Influence that have been adopted 
by local agency formation commissions in each county of the region.  AMBAG is also preparing 
an  Environmental  Impact  Report  for  the  transportation  plan;  LAFCO  of Monterey  County  is 
participating  as  a  Responsible  Agency  in  that  process.  LAFCO  Commissioner  Darington  and 
Executive Officer McKenna serve on AMBAG’s Regional Advisory Committee, and the Executive 
Officer serves on AMBAG’s Planning Directors Forum.  Both groups provide input to AMBAG. 
 

LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION
P.O. Box 1369                  132 W. Gabilan Street, Suite 102 
Salinas, CA 93902                  Salinas, CA  93901 
Telephone (831) 754‐5838    Fax (831) 754‐5831 

www.monterey.lafco.ca.gov 

AGENDA
ITEM 
NO. 8.a 



2 
 

In addition to receiving a briefing, the Commission is requested to authorize a Comment Letter 
for  the  environmental  review  process  (Attachment  1).    The  letter  was  prepared  by  the 
Executive Officer  in July  in response to an AMBAG Notice of Preparation of an Environmental 
Impact  Report  for  the  2014 Metropolitan  Transportation  Plan  and  Sustainable  Communities 
Strategy.  Provided as Attachment 2, the notice does not identify a specific project, but does list 
six transportation/land use scenarios.    In order to respond to the notice  in a timely fashion, a 
Comment Letter was sent to AMBAG on a conditional basis, subject to review and approval by 
the Commission.   
 
Next Steps 
 
AMBAG  staff  is  refining  the  list of  scenarios.   Based on  comments  received  through  July,  all 
scenarios were  rated  on  a  scorecard.    AMBAG  staff  presented  two  hybrid  scenarios  to  the 
AMBAG Board on August 14.  In September, the Board of Directors will be requested to select 
one scenario for further study and environmental analysis.  
 
LAFCO will comment on the Draft Environmental Impact Report for the selected scenario in late 
2013  or  early  2014.    LAFCO will  also  continue  to  participate  in  the  transportation  planning 
process through completion in mid‐2014.  
 
Upon  adoption,  the Metropolitan  Transportation Plan/Sustainable Communities  Strategy will 
be a basis for transportation investments and planning work by the Transportation Agency for 
Monterey County.  
 
Alternative Actions 
 
In  lieu  of  authorizing  the  attached  letter,  the  Commission  may  modify  the  comments  or 
withdraw all comments. 
   
 
Respectfully Submitted, 

 
Kate McKenna, AICP, 
Executive Officer 
 
cc:  Heather Adamson, AMBAG 
   
Attachments: 

1‐ Draft Comment Letter 
2‐ Notice of Preparation 



 

1 
 

 
 

Notice of Preparation for an Environmental Impact Report 
 
 

2014 Metropolitan Transportation Plan/Sustainable Communities Strategy 
2014 Regional Transportation Plans for San Benito, Santa Cruz, and Monterey Counties 

 
 

Notice is hereby given that the Association of Monterey Bay Area Governments (AMBAG) will be the 
lead agency in partnership with San Benito County Governments (SBtCOG), the Santa Cruz County 
Regional Transportation Commission (SCCRTC), and the Transportation Agency for Monterey County 
(TAMC), who are responsible parties, for the preparation of an Environmental Impact Report for the 
2014 Metropolitan Transportation Plan/Sustainable Communities Strategy (MTP/SCS). SBtCOG, 
SCCRTC, and TAMC are the lead agencies for the development of the 2014 Regional Transportation 
Plan for San Benito County, 2014 Regional Transportation Plan for Santa Cruz County, and 2014 
Regional Transportation Plan for Monterey County.  
 
Pursuant to section 15082 of the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA), AMBAG is soliciting 
views from your agency as to the scope and content of the environmental information which is germane 
to your agency’s statutory responsibilities in connection with the proposed MTP/SCS and affected RTP. 
AMBAG also will accept written comments concerning the scope and content of the EIR from interested 
persons and organizations concerned with the project. The Draft EIR will be a Program EIR. A Program 
EIR is an EIR that may be prepared on a series of actions that can be characterized as one large 
project and acts as the first tier of environmental review. The EIR will serve as the Program EIR for the 
AMBAG 2014 MTP/SCS and as the EIR for the Regional Transportation Plans prepared by the RTPAs 
for San Benito, Santa Cruz, and Monterey counties. 
 
The project description, location, environmental review requirements, and probable environmental 
issues to be addressed in the EIR are discussed below. An Initial Study is not attached and is not 
required, in accordance with State CEQA Guidelines Section 15060(d).   
 
The 2014 MTP/SCS will guide the development of the Regional and Federal Transportation 
Improvement Programs as well as other transportation programming documents and plans throughout 
San Benito, Santa Cruz and Monterey counties. The 2014 MTP/SCS outlines the region's goals and 
policies for meeting current and future mobility needs, providing a foundation for transportation 
decisions by local, regional, and State officials that are ultimately aimed at achieving a coordinated and 
balanced transportation system. The Regional Transportation Plans for the Counties of San Benito, 
Santa Cruz, and Monterey are developed for each of the counties to provide a sound basis for the 
allocation of state and federal transportation funds to transportation projects within each county over a 
long-range timeframe through 2035. The RTPs address all forms of transportation, and includes the 
priorities and actions embodied in the plans prepared by each of the county’s cities and unincorporated 
areas. 
 
The SCS component of the MTP/SCS is required by California Senate Bill 375, the Sustainable 
Communities and Climate Protection Act of 2008 (“SB 375”). SB 375 mandates regional greenhouse 
gas (“GHG”) reduction targets for passenger vehicles and, pursuant to that law, the California Air 
Resources Board (CARB) has established 2020 and 2035 GHG reduction targets for each region 
covered by one of the state’s metropolitan planning organizations (MPOs). AMBAG is required to 



 

2 
 

prepare an SCS that demonstrates how GHG reduction targets could be met through integrated land 
use, housing, and transportation planning. If the SCS is unable to meet the GHG reduction targets, then 
an Alternative Planning Scenario must be prepared. 
 
Mail comments to Heather Adamson at AMBAG, 445 Reservation Road, Suite G, Marina, California 
93933 or e-mail comments to hadamson@ambag.org no later than July 24, 2013. 

 
For more information, visit www.movingforwardmb.org or call (831) 883-3750. 
 
AMBAG will host a series of EIR Scoping Meetings/Public Workshops. The purpose of the 
meetings is to solicit input on the scope and content of the environmental analysis that will be included 
in the Draft EIR, to inform the public of the 2014 MTP/SCS, as well as solicit public input on the 2014 
MTP/SCS. The date, time and location of the meetings are as follows: 
 
 In Monterey on July 15, 2013 from 6:00 PM to 7:30 PM at the Monterey Youth Center, 

777 Pearl Street
 In Greenfield on July 16, 2013 from 6:00 PM to 7:30 PM at the City of Greenfield Council 

Chambers, 599 El Camino Real 
 In Hollister on July 17, 2013 from 6:00 PM to 7:30 PM at the City of Hollister Veterans' Memorial 

Building, 649 San Benito Street, Room 218 
 In Watsonville on July 18, 2013 from 6:00 PM to 7:30PM at the City of Watsonville Community 

Room, 275 Main Street, 4th Floor 
 In Santa Cruz on July 22, 2013 from 6:00 PM to 7:30 PM at the Santa Cruz Police Department 

Community Room, 155 Center Street 
 In Salinas on July 23, 2013 from 6:00 PM to 7:30 PM at the Salinas Agricultural Center, 1432 

Abbott Street 
 

PROJECT DESCRIPTION AND SCOPE OF ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS 
 
Project Title 
 
AMBAG 2014 Metropolitan Transportation Plan/Sustainable Communities Strategy, SBtCOG 2014 
Regional Transportation Plan, SCCRTC 2014 Regional Transportation Plan and TAMC 2014 Regional 
Transportation Plan   
 
Project Location 
 
The geographical extent of the proposed 2014 MTP/SCS includes San Benito, Santa Cruz and 
Monterey counties, and all incorporated cities and unincorporated areas contained therein. Capital 
improvement projects identified in the 2014 MTP/SCS are located on state highways, county and city 
roads, and locally owned streets, as well as on airport property, and transit district property. The 
geographical extent for each RTPA’s Regional Transportation Plan is the boundary for each respective 
county, including its incorporated and unincorporated areas. 
 
Project Description 
 
As the MPO for the tri‐county region of Monterey, San Benito, and Santa Cruz counties, AMBAG is 
charged with developing a 2014 MTP/SCS. The 2014 MTP/SCS is the metropolitan long‐range 
transportation plan for Monterey, San Benito, and Santa Cruz counties. The Council of San Benito 
County Governments (SBtCOG), the Santa Cruz County Regional Transportation Commission 
(SCCRTC), and the Transportation Agency for Monterey County (TAMC) are the state‐designated 
Regional Transportation Planning Agencies (RTPAs) for San Benito, Santa Cruz and Monterey 
counties, respectively. Each RTPA prepares a county‐level long‐range Regional Transportation Plan, 



 

3 
 

which will be evaluated in this EIR. The 2014 MTP/SCS is used to guide the development of the 
Regional and Federal Transportation Improvement Programs, as well as other transportation 
programming documents and plans. The MTP outlines the region's goals and policies for meeting 
current and future mobility needs, providing a foundation for transportation decisions by local, regional, 
and State officials that are ultimately aimed at achieving a coordinated and balanced transportation 
system. The 2014 MTP/SCS sets forth actions, programs, and projects to address these needs 
consistent with adopted policies and goals. The 2014 MTP/SCS also documents the financial resources 
needed to implement the plan. The EIR will serve as the Program EIR for the AMBAG 2014 MTP/SCS 
as well as the Regional Transportation Plans prepared by the RTPAs for San Benito, Santa Cruz, and 
Monterey counties. 
 
The Sustainable Communities and Climate Protection Act of 2008 (SB 375, Steinberg) enhances 
California's ability to reach its AB 32 greenhouse gas emissions reduction goals by promoting 
coordinated planning with the goal of creating more sustainable communities. SB 375 mandates 
regional greenhouse gas emission reduction targets for passenger vehicles. Pursuant to SB 375, the 
California Air Resources Board (CARB) established targets for 2020 and 2035 for each region covered 
by one of the State's 18 metropolitan planning organizations (MPOs). AMBAG, as the regional MPO, 
must prepare a SCS that demonstrates how the region will meet its greenhouse gas reduction target 
through integrated land use, housing, and transportation planning. AMBAG is currently preparing the 
2014 MTP/SCS for the region. The 2014 MTP/SCS EIR will analyze the plan’s impacts on the physical 
environment and identify strategies to avoid or mitigate significant environmental effects. It also will be 
an informational document intended to inform public decisionmakers, responsible or interested 
agencies, and the general public of the potential environmental effects of a project. 
  

If the targets established by CARB cannot be feasibly met, an Alternative Planning Strategy (APS) will 
be prepared by AMBAG to show how the targets would be achieved through alternative development 
patterns, infrastructure, or additional transportation measures or policies. AMBAG’s intent is to achieve 
these targets with the 2014 MTP/SCS.  
 
The transportation component of the SCS will include the network of road and transit networks, 
non-motorized transportation, and transportation strategies and policies. Furthermore, SB 375 requires 
that the SCS shall identify general land uses, residential densities, and building intensities as well as 
areas to house future residents (see California Government Code Section 65080(b)(2)(B) for the full list 
of SB 375 requirements). 
 
The Regional Transportation Plans for the Counties of San Benito, Santa Cruz, and Monterey are 
developed for each of the counties to provide a sound basis for the allocation of state and federal 
transportation funds to transportation projects within each county over a long-range timeframe through 
2035. The RTPs address all forms of transportation, and includes the priorities and actions embodied in 
the plans prepared by each of the county’s cities and unincorporated areas.The RTPs follows guidelines 
established by the State of California's Transportation Commission (CTC) to describe the transportation 
issues and needs facing each county; identify goals and policies for how each county will meet its 
needs; identify the amount of money that will be available for needed projects; and include a list of 
prioritized transportation projects to serve each county’s long-term needs within the projected “budget” 
of transportation revenues with consideration towards environmental impacts, land use, and special 
transportation needs.  
 
Issues to Be Addressed in the EIR 
 
AMBAG, with input from the RTPAs for San Benito, Santa Cruz, and Monterey Counties, is currently 
evaluating several SCS scenarios to assess how future land use and transportation changes could 
achieve a coordinated and balanced regional transportation system while reducing GHG emissions 
from passenger vehicles and light trucks to meet the regional GHG reduction targets set by the 



 

4 
 

California Air Resources Board (CARB). Following public review and input, the AMBAG Board of 
Directors will select a preferred SCS scenario. The EIR will evaluate the environmental effects of the 
preferred SCS scenario in detail.  
 
The impact categories listed below have been preliminarily identified for analysis in the 2014 MTP/SCS 
EIR. 
 

 Aesthetics/Visual Resources 
 Agricultural Resources 
 Air Quality and Health Impacts/Risks 
 Biological Resources 
 Climate Change/Greenhouse Gases 
 Cultural and Historic Resources 
 Energy 
 Environmental Justice/Social Equity 
 Geology/Soils 
 Hazards and Hazardous Materials 
 Hydrology/Water Quality 
 Land Use 
 Mineral Resources 
 Noise 
 Population and Housing 
 Recreation 
 Traffic and Circulation  
 Utilities/Regional Water Supply 

 
The EIR also will address cumulative impacts, growth inducing impacts, and other issues required by 
CEQA. 
 
Preliminary Project Alternatives Scenarios 
 
In addition, the EIR also will evaluate the environmental impacts of alternative scenarios. The analysis 
of alternatives will focus on various land use and transportation scenarios that make different 
assumptions regarding the combinations of future land uses and transportation system improvements.  
The following preliminary MTP/SCS project alternatives may be addressed in the EIR: 
 

 No Project Alternative – The No Project Alternative is required by CEQA. For this EIR, the No 
Project Alternative is defined as a land use base comprised of existing land use plans and a 
transportation network of comprised of committed transportation projects.  

 Intensified Land Use Alternative – The Intensified Land Use Distribution Alternative will 
analyze a land use pattern that further concentrates the forecasted population and employment 
growth in areas identified for more intensified use. The transportation network will be modified to 
accommodate this projected concentration of future growth. 

 
CEQA Streamlining 
 
SB 375 contains CEQA incentives, or streamlining provisions, to encourage coordinated land use and 
transportation planning. Certain types of development projects (i.e., transit priority projects or 
residential/mixed use residential projects, as defined by the statute) may qualify for CEQA streamlining 
as long as the requisite criteria are met. Generally, this means that the proposed project seeking to 
utilize the CEQA incentives is determined to be consistent with an approved SCS. Consistency will be 
determined by the local jurisdiction that is the lead agency for each project to be streamlined. AMBAG’s 



 

5 
 

primary role is to include appropriate information in the SCS, such as land use information as required 
by SB 375 and/or guidance to aid in interpreting land use information that will allow a jurisdiction to 
make a consistency determination with respect to appropriate streamlining options on a project by 
project basis. 

 




	Draft Agenda - 8-26-13
	5.a Staff EOR 08262013
	5.b 50th Anniv EOR 8-26-13 
	6.a Draft Minutes of June 24, 2013 Meeting
	6.b Register of Warrants EOR 08 26 13
	6.b (1) Attach June 2013 Warrant Register
	6.b (2) Attach July 2013 Warrant Register
	July 2013

	6.c Anticipated Items EOR 08 26 13
	6.d CALAFCO  EOR 082613
	6.d Attach - (1) CALAFCO Qtrly Legislative-Other Activities  8-26-13013
	6.d Attach (2) CALAFCO Cal of Events-Legis and Other Activites 8-26-13
	6.d Attach (3)  Calafco Legis-OtherActivites 56133 Pro amend approved by CALAFCO Brd 8-26-13
	ITEM 7.a Cover Sheet - Web Availability
	(1)  082613 Item 7b _Carmel Highlands - draft EO report
	(2)  7.b  Cov Sheet Attachment 1
	(3)  082613 Item 7b Attachment 1 location map
	(4)  7.b  Cov Sheet Attachment 2
	(5)  082613 Item 7b Attachment 2 Reso
	(6)  082613 Item 7b Attachment 2 Reso exh 1
	(7)  082613 Item 7b Attachment 2 Reso exh 2
	(8)  7.b Cov Sheet  Attachment 3
	(9)  082613 Item 7b Attachment 3 Neg Dec
	8.a AMBAG NOP Letter EOR 8-26-13
	8.a AMBAG_MTP-SCS_EIR_NOP



